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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Florida 
Florida, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, each 
major fund. and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Florida of the 
Commonwea lth of Puerto Rico (the ·'Municipality"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, 
which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the 
accompany ing table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We did not audit the Financial Statements of the Las Villas de Florida I Apartments (component 
unit). Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us, 
and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included for Las Villas de Florida in base 
solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Except for the following paraghraph, we conducted our aud it in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the Un ited States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the respective financial statements . An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
finan cial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in ote 9 to the Financial Statements , management has not recorded a provis ion for 
liability of thclosure and potsc losure care cost of the landfill. Accounting principles generally 
acepted in the united States of America require that a provis ion for liability of closure and 
postclosure coscare costs dbe recorded to comply with the applicable sate and federal regulations. 
The amount by wich this departure would affect the liabilities, net assets, and expenses of the 
govermenta l activities is not reasonable determinable. 

In our opinion, the financi~I statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Florida of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. as of June 30. 2008. and the respective changes in financial pos ition thereof, for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Mailing Address Box 757, Dorado, PR 00646 
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In accordance with Government Audit Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 
15, 2008 on our consideration of the Government internal control over financial reporting and my 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of law, regulations, contracts and grants. The report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audit Standards and 
should be read in conjuction with this reporting in considering the results of our audit. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purposes financial 
statement taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditure of federal awards is 
presented for purpose of additional analysis as required by US Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and Non - Profit Organizations, and is not 
required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the genera l purpose financial statements and, in my 
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
Also. in our opinion the financial statements of the Govermental Activities referred to in the first 
paragraph present fair ly. in all material respects, the individual financial positions of The 
Municipality of Florida and the component unit Las Villas de Florida I Apartments (as to which 
we express no opinion because those statements were audited by other auditors as indicated in the 
first paragraph), as of June 30, 2008 and the results of their individual operations and their 
individual cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

The accompanying Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Budgetary Comparison 
Schedule are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary 
information required by the GASB. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplementary information. However. we did not audit the information and 
express no op in ion on it. 

~.~ 
License # ii\4t' A . I 

December 15. 2008 
Toa Baja. Puerto Rico 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Florida (the Municipality) financial performance 
provides an overview of the Municipality's financia l activities for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008. 
Please read it in conjunction with the Municipality's financial statements. 

Management of the Municipality of Florida (the "Municipality") implemented Statement No. 34 
("Statement") of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GAS B"), Basic Financial Statements 
and Management's Discuss ion and Analysis for States and Loca l Governments. Th is Management's 
Di scuss ion and Analys is (MD&A) is prepared as a result of the requirements of such Statement, and it 
has been designed accordingly with the followi ngs goals: 

a) Assist the reader in focus ing on significant finan cial issues. 
b) Provide an overview of the Mun ic ipality's financial activity. 
c) Identify changes in the Municipality's financial pos it ion (its ability to address the next and 

subsequent year challenges). 
d) Identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and: 
e) Identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Municipality Governmental Activities net assets increased by $1,043 ,526 during the year. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, the net assets decreased by $80, 153. 

The Genera l Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financia l resource basis, an 
increase of $243.074. 

The Joint resolutions Fund. wh ich accounts for PR Government restricted grants for special purposes, 
decreased by $433.566. 

Other Governmental Funds, which accounts for a ll other spec ial purposes funds. reported a net asset 
increase of $ 16 1.044. 

The Debt Service Fund, w hich is reserved for the long term debt amortization and related interest 
payment, increased by $47.230. 

The Capital Project Fund Balance, which rs reserved for maJOr capital expenditures, decreased by 
$99,935. 

The Municipality·s Component Unit (Vi llas de Florida I) reported a net asset decrease of$59,24 1. 

On a budgetary bas is. actual expenditu res exceeded actua l revenues by $887,874 in the general fund. 

Capita l expenditures for acqu is ition of land, vehic les, construction and improvements of recreational 
fac ilities. infrastructure, and construction in progress( for Governmental Activities), amounted to 
$289,935 in the Capita l Project Fund, $804,564 in the Joint Reso lutions Fund, and $806, 110 in other 
funds. for a total of$ 1.900,609. 

3 



-

-

-

-
-

MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the focus from 
previous fi nancia l statements. The new focus is on both the Municipal ity as a whole (government-wide) 
and the major indiv idual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to 
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) 
and enhance the Municipality and its component unit's accountabil ity. 

Reporting the Municipality as a Whole 

One of the most important questions asked about the Municipality's finances is, "Is the Munic ipality as a 
whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activit ies?" The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities report information about the Municipality as a whole and about its activities in a 
way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual 
basis of accounting, wh ic h is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Mun icipality's net assets and changes in them. You can th ink of the 
Municipality's net assets - the d ifference between assets and liabi li ties - as one way to measure the 
Mun ic ipality's financial health, or financia l position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Municipality's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Municipality's 
property tax base and the condition of the Municipality's roads, to assess the overal l health of the 
Municipal ity. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we d iv ide the Municipality into two kinds 
of activities: 

Governmenta l activ1t1es - Most of the Munic ipal ity's basic services are reported here, including the 
po lice, sanitat ion. public works, sports and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes, 
franchise fees, and state and federal grants fi nance most of these activities. 

Proprietary business type act ivities - The Municipality includes in its report a separate legal entity, as a 

component unit. - Villas de Florida I. Although legally separate, this entity is owned by the Municipal ity. 

This component unit is important because the Municipa lity is financially accountable for it. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipali ty's most s ignificant 
funds, not-the Munic ipali ty as a whole. The Mun icipality has two kinds of fund which are the 
governmenta l fund and proprietary fund . 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentia lly the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Government Wide 
Financial Statements, Government Fund Fi nanc ial Statements focus on nea r term inflows and outflows of 
expendable resources, as wel l as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information is usefu l in evaluating the Municipal ity's near term financial requirements. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing 
so, users of the basic financial statements may better understand the long-term impact of the 
Municipality's near term financial decisions. Both of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a 
reconciliation to fac ilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Proprietary funds are used when the Municipality charges customers for the serv ices it provides-whether 
to outside customers or to other units of the Municipality-these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds, Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the 
Statement of et Assets and the Statement of Activities, but provide more detail and additional 
information. such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. The Municipality Component Unit - Villas de 
Florida I - is reported as a proprietary fund. 

Villas de Florida I is a housing development consisting of land, buildings and improvements providing 
dwelling units located at Florida, Puerto Rico, owned by the Municipality of Florida, Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. The housing project is designed to assist various segments of the general public in obtaining 
adequate and reasonably priced rental housing. The project operated with financing from Farmers Home 
Administration, issued under Section 515 (Rural Rental Housing) of the National Housing Act with 
HU D's Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment Program. 

The operations of the project are carried-out by a management agent. The potential rent including 
subsidies as approved by HUD is $361 ,400 for the year. and is subject to annual revisions as prescribed 
in the Housing Assistance Payment contract wi th HUD. 

Infrastructure Assets 

Historically. a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.) 
have not been reported nor depreciated in government financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these 
assets be valued and reported wi thin the governmental column of the Government-Wide Statements. 
Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful 
life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to 
near perpetuity. If the government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which 
periodically (at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally 
established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of 
depreciation . 

The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the government infrastructure 
assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local government and its performance over 
time. 

In July I, 2003 , the Municipality commenced the prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and 
retroactively reports the historical costs of infrastructure assets starting from the fiscal year beginning 
July I, 2002. The Municipality elected to depreciate infrastructure assets instead of using the modified 
approach . 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

As noted earlier. net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial Position. 
The Municipality's net assets totaled $8,683.789 as of June 30, 2008, while the Component Unit's net 
assets totaled $669.672; fo r total combined net assets of $16,930,60 I. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net assets is the investment in capital assets ($11,610,602) such 
as land, buildings, improvements, vehicles, equipment, etc., less any outstanding related debt used to­
acquire those assets. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although, the Municipality's investment 
in its capita l assets is reported net of related debt. it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from the Debt Service Fund, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. The amounts restricted for debt serv ice ($124,369) and amounts 
restricted for capital projects ($193.628), represents another portion of the net assets. These are 
resources subject to external restrictions for the purposes explained above. 

The Component Unit's net assets are the amounts restricted for improvements and replacements 
($669.672). Under the terms of the Regulatory Agreement, the Project is required to set amounts 
for the replacement of property and other project expenditures as approved by HUD and FmHA. 
The regulations require monthly transfers of $3,279. Disbursements from the Restricted Deposits 
and Funded Reserve must be made with the written consent of FmHA and HUD. Restricted 
funds, are held in separate accounts and generally are not available for operating purposes. The 
amounts of investment in capital assets ($773,923) such as land, buildings, equipment, etc., less any 
outstanding related debt used to acquire those assets, represents another significant portion of the 
Component Un it's net assets. 

Changes in Net Assets 

The Municipality's Governmental Activities net assets increased by $10,435.206. Approximately 67 
percent of the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 27 percent resulted from grants and 
contributions. includ ing federal aid. Charges for Services and other sources provided 6 percent of the 
total revenues. Revenues exceeded expenditures by $1 ,043,526 or 11 percent. The Municipality's 
expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general government administration, 
health and welfare. public works, and depreciation. 

The Component Unit's net assets decreased by $59,241. Approximately 95 percent of the Component 
Unit's total revenue came from rent, while 5 percent resulted from interest and other miscellaneous 
sources. Expenses exceeded the total revenues by $59.941 or 16 percent. The largest expenses were for 
depreciation. interest. administration and maintenance. 

A summary o f government-wide data is presented in next page. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISC USSION AND ANALYSIS 

- Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
As of June 30, 2008 Governmental Component 

Activities Unit 
ASS ETS 

Current assets $ 3,044,964 $ 721, 112 
Non current assets 12.390,602 773,923 
Other assets 

Total Assets 15,435,566 1,495,035 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 1,921 ,619 32,286 
Long tem1 obligations due within one year 395,469 47,42 1 

Long term obligations due after one year 4.434,689 745,656 

Total Liabilities 6,75 1.777 825,363 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 11 ,610,602 - Unrestricted ( 4, I 03,348) 669,672 
Restricted 1, 176,535 

Total et Assets $ 8,683,789 $ 669,672 

Condensed Statement of Activities 
For the year ended June 30, 2008 Governmental Component 

Activities Unit 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 504,930 $ 26, 191 
Operating grants and contributions 225,408 
Capita l grants and contributions 2.275,035 33 1,853 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 4.546,566 
Municipal license tax 161.680 
Construction excise taxes 623 ,993 
Municipal sales taxes 934,578 
Intergovernmental contributions 50,948 
Other 53,960 17, 131 

Total revenues 9,377,098 375, 175 

Expenses: 
General government 2.126,206 
Urban and economic development 2,549, 172 
Health & sanitation 1,044,418 
Public safety 767,586 
Public housing and welfare 75 1,465 
Cu lture. recreation and education 873.784 
Operating and maintenance 239,59 1 

- Interest on long term obligations 220.941 57,923 
Depreciation 136,902 

Total expenses 8,333,572 434,416 

Change in net assets $ 1,043,526 $ (59,241) 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Component Unit 

Revenues of the Mun icipality's component unit reported $375, 175 for a decrease of$ 13,562 (3 .6%). 
Expenses amounted to $434,416, including $136,902 charge for depreciation, for an increase of 
$2,731(1%). Net assets decreased by $59,241 due to excess expenditures over revenues. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance related lega l requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of, the Municipality's governmenta l funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows. and balances of expendable resources. Such information is usefu I in assessing the 
Municipality's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year. the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $1.028,345. a decrease of $80, 153 in comparison with the prior year. There are 
reservations of fund balance amounting to $1,208, 158. This is the fund balance that it is not available for 
new spending because it has already been committed (I) to pay debt service $124,369, (2) to pay for 
capital projects $1.003,500. and (3) for other purposes $80.195. The unreserved fund balance reports a 
balance in the governmental deficit of$ 179.719 

General fund - The total fund balance of the GF decreased by $957,985 during current fiscal year. 

Approximately 82% ($13.874,009) of the GF"s total revenues for the current fiscal year came from 
property, municipal license. construction excise taxes and sales and use taxes, while ($1,816,803) 
resulted from intergovernmental grants and contributions. 

The largest expenses of the GF for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were related to: ( 1) general 
administrating and operating costs ($4.614,273), which were classified as "general government", (2) 
pub I ic hous ing and welfare ($1.644.421 ), (3) health and sanitation ($3,284,577), ( 4) urban and economic 
development ($2,148.971). (5) public safety ($2.505,213) and (6) culture, recreation and education 
($2,546.633 ). 

Debt service fund (DSF) - The total fund balance of the DSF increased by $47,230 during current fiscal 
year. Approximately $150.162 of DSF"s total revenues for the current fi scal year came from restricted 
property taxes. DSF"s total expenditures for the current fiscal year came from principal and interests on 
bonds payable ($1.300.900). 

Capital improvements bond fund (CIBF) - The tota l fund balance of the CIBF increased by. 
$4.080.275 during current fi scal year. CIBF"s total revenues for the current fiscal year came from 
interests on deposits and certain miscellaneous revenues amounting to $173,325. CIBF's total 
expenditures for the current fiscal year came principally from capital outlays ($760,228). Other 
financing sources amounted to $4.080.275. principally for the proceeds on the issuance of bonds during 
2007-2008. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Joint Resolutions (JR)- The total fund balance of the Joint Resolutions decrease by $433,566 during 
current year. JR 's main revenues for the current fi scal years came from intergovernmental grants and 
contributions ($641.025). JR ·s expenditures for the current year were related to capital outlays· 
($804.564) and urban and economic development ($425 ,900). 

AEE Legal Settlement (AEE LS)- The total fund balance of AEE LS increase by $2,000 during current 
year. JR ·s total revenues for the current fi scal years came principally from intergovernmental grants and 
contributions ($200,343). AEE LS's expenditures for the current year were related to capital outlays 
($I 98J43). 

Other governmental funds (OGF) - The total fund balance of the OGF increased by $551 ,606 during 
current fiscal year. Substantially all of OGF 's revenues for the current fiscal year came from 
intergovernmental grants and contributions of $3 , 196,354. Total expenditures were mainly related to the 
operating costs of state and federa l funded programs. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year. the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in order to 
include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal year based on current . 
developments that positively affected the Municipality's finances. Increases (decreases) in budgeted 
expenditures were also made s ince the law mandates a balanced budget. 

In summary the general fund actual revenues were under budget by $724,694, wh ile actual expend itures 
were over budgeted amounts by $163, 180, for a net unfavorable variance of $887,874. The most 
s ignificant variance between budget and actual results were as follows: 

Volume o f bus iness tax revenues were $83,588 over budgeted amount. 
Property tax revenues were $364,932 under budgeted amount. 
Government of PR Contributions were $538, 166 under budgeted amount. 
Personel expenditures were $ 104.290 more than budgeted amount. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's and its Component Unit investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2008, amounts to. 
$22, 182,666 and $3 ,257,572 respectively, with accumulated depreciation of $10,422,064 and $2,483 ,649, 
leaving a net book value of $12,390,602 for the Municipality and $773,923 for its component unit. 

Thi s investment in capita l assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, veh icles, 
infrastructure and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally irremovable 
and of va lue only to the state. such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, and s imilar items. 

Actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets for governmental activit ies were $2,549, 172 
for the year. 

Depreciation charges for the year totaled $753, 13 7 for governmental activities and for the component 
unit. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality 
may be pledged. See "Limitations on Ability of Municipalities to Issue General Obl igation Debt - The 
Municipal Bonds" for a general description of such limitations. 

The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general 
obligatioi1 bonds and notes such municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity." Act No. 64 
provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt 
if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to . 
such municipality's Special- Additional Tax (as defined below). as projected by GDB, will be sufficient 
to service to maturi ty the municipal ity's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed 
general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity"). 

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as 
shall be required for the payment of its general obl igation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, 
principal of and interest on all general obl igation mun icipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes 
issued in antic ipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a 
first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipal ity's Basic Tax revenues 
wou ld be available to make debt service payments on general obligation mun ic ipal bonds and notes to the 
extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the Municipal ity, together with moneys on deposit in the 
Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been 
necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipal ity's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, · 
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the 
Municipality's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need add itional financial 
information, contact the Municipali ty's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 1168, Florida, Puerto Rico 
00650-1 168. 
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- i\lli KIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF Pll ERTO RICO 

STATEME T OF NET ASSETS 
Jl'N E 30, 2008 

GOVER. MENTAL COM PONE T 2008 

ACTIVITIES t lNIT TOTAL 

ASSf.TS: 
Current Assets· 

Cash and cash e4ui\ alents $ 40.106 $ 40.106 
Accounts receivable: 

Municipal license ta'es 21.872 21.872 
Construction excise la"<es 696 696 
Sales and use tax 1,1 16 1, 116 
Intergovernmental grants and contributions 1.477.250 1.477.250 
Acnied interests on deposits 813 813 
Other recei,·ables 50.000 9.980 59.980 

Total receivables 1.551.747 9.980 1.561.727 

Restricted Assets· 

Cash in comerc1al Banks 946.962 946.962 

Cash in liscal agent 546.255 546.255 

Other restricted deposits 649.536 649.536 - Total restricted assets 1.493.217 649.536 2.142.753 

01her current assets 21.490 21.490 

Total Current Assets 3.044.964 721.112 3.766.076 

Non current Assets: 
Capital assets: 

Depreciable capital asse1s 21.538.587 2.954.970 24.493.557 
011-<kprec1able capital asset~ 1.274,079 302.602 1.576.681 

Total capital assets 22.81 2.666 3.257.572 26.070.238 
Less: accumulated depreciation and :unortization (I 0.422.064) (2.483.649) ( 12.905.713) 

Capital assets. net or accumulated depr.:ciation 12.390.602 773.923 13.164.525 

Total non current assets 12.390.602 773.923 13.164.525 
Total Assets s 15.,435,566 s 1,495,035. $ 16,930,601 

- LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities· 

Accounts payable. 

A.:counts pa~abl<! and 01her a.:crued liabiliues 646.379 12.255 658.634 
Intergovernmental 1.029.663 1.029.663 
Acrued in1erest on bonds and notes pa' abk 2U72 4.591 26.063 
Other 15.440 15.440 

Total accounts payabk 1.697.514 32.286 1.729.800 

Unearned re,·enues 224.105 224.1 05 

Current portion oflong tenn obligations 

Bonds pa} able 75.000 75.000 

Notes pa~ able 64.814 64.814 

Mortgage payabk 47.421 47.421 

C 0111pensa1ed absen.:.:s 255.655 255.655 - Total current ponion or long term obligations 395.469 47.421 4~2.890 

Toial current liabilities 2.317.088 79.707 2.396.795 

Non current Liabilities. 
Bonds payable 705.000 705.000 
Not.:s payable 3.133.162 3.133.162 
Mortgage payabk 745.656 745.656 
Compensated absen.:es 596.527 596.527 

Total noncurrent hab1litks 4.434.689 745.656 5.180.345 
T otal Liabilities 6. 751.777 825.363 7.577.140 

Nf.T ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

h1' t'sted in Capital Assets. net of rdat~ deb1 11.610.602 11.610.602 
R~stnclL'd for: 

Dt:bt Service 124.369 124.369 - Capital projects 193.628 193.628 
Grant and contribu1ions 858.538 858.538 

fotal resincted nc1 assets 1. 176.535 1. 176.535 

Unrcstrict~'d net assets (4. 103.348) 669.672 (3.433.676) 
Total Net Assets $ 8.683.789 $ 669.672 $ 9.353.461 

Tota l Lia bilities and net aSSt>ts $ 15.435.566 $ 1.495.035 $ 16.930.601 

Th.: accompanying notes are int.:gral pan of these financial statements. S.:e auditor's report 
II 



GO\'ERNl\IENTAL ACTl\HIES: 
General go•emment 
Urhan and economic de•elopmcnt 
Health & sanitation 
Public safot y 
Public housing and welfare 
Culture. recreation and education 
Interest on long term obligations 

Total go,cmmental activities 

cmlPONE'IT l ' ' IT: 
Villa< de l·lorida I. g«neral 
\"illas dt' Florida I - deprcciarion - \'illas d• Florida I • interest 

Total component unit 

TOT.\L A(1'1\HIES 

-

-

-

-

!\Ill ICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
CO~IMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

PRO G RAM RE VEN U ES 

OPERA T l G CAPITAL 
CHARGES FOR GRANTS A D GR.\NTSAND 

EXPENSES SER\ .ICES ('0 TRIBllTIONS CONTRIBllTIONS 

$ 2.126.206 s 504.930 
2.549.172 
1.D4H l8 

767.586 
751.465 
873.784 
220,94 1 

ll.333.572 504.930 

239.591 26.191 
136.902 
57.913 

434.4 16 26.191 

s 8.767.<lRS s 531.121 

GENERAL REVENL' ES: 
Taxes: 

flropeny Taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Municipal sales ta\ 
Construction excise 1'1\\c!S 

Total Taxes 

180.924 

44.-184 

225,408 

331.853 

331.853 

s 557.261 

lntergo•emmental contributions and reimbursements 
Unrest rict~-d interests. fines and penalties 
Other revenues 

Total General Revenues 

. et C hange in net assets 
Other Financial Source 

Net assets - beginning of tisca l year 
Prior-period adjuste1m:111 

Net assets - beginning of fiscal war. as restated 

1\et assets· ending or fisc:rl ~·ear 

s 578,483 
957.598 
21 8,199 

200.243 

320.512 

2,275.035 

s 2.275,035 

ET (EXPENSE) REV ENUE 
AND CHANGES I ET ASSETS 

GOVERNME TALCOMPONENT 2008 
ACTIVITIES l lNIT TOTAL 

$ (l.Q.12.793) $ s ( l.042,7'l3J 
(1 .410.650) ( 1.410.650 ) 

!826.219) !826.219 ) 
(567.343 ) (567.343 ) 
(751.465 ) (751.465 ) 
(508,788) (508.788) 
(220,941) (220,941 ) 

(5.328.199) (5.328. 199) 

118,453 118.453 
( 136.902) ( 136,902) 

(57.923) (57.923) 

(76.372) (76.372) 

(5.328. JQQ ) (76.371 ) (5.4().1571 J 

4.546.566 4.546.566 
161.680 161.680 
623.994 623.<l'l4 
93-1.578 93-1.578 

6.266,818 6.266,818 

50.948 50.948 
21.807 13.806 35.613 
32.152 3,325 35,477 

104,907 17,131 122,038 

1,043,526 (59,241 ) 98-',285 

7.656,817 728.913 8.385,730 
( 16.554) (16.554) 

7.640.263 728.913 8.369.176 

s 8,683.789 s 669.672 s 9,353,461 

The accompanying noics are integral pan of 1hcse financial sta1cmcn1s. Sec auditor's repon_ 



COl\IMONWEALTll OF PUERTO RICO 
l\Jl!NICIPALITY OF FLORID.-\ 
Balan1:e Sheet- Governmental Funds 

June 30. 2008 

Ma.jo r Funds 

Capital Other Total 
General J oint AEE Legal Debt Service Improvements Governmental Govern mental 

Fund Resolution Settlement Fund Bond Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Unrestricted cash and cash equi\ alents 
/\crnunts Rccei' ables. 

net of allowance for doubttiol accounts 
Ta,es 

Pmpe~ ta_,c-s 

Municipal license tax $ ~1.872 $ 21.872 
Cunslruction t:\Ci~ la\.es 696 696 
Sales and use ta'es 1,116 1,116 
Accrued interest on deposits 223 s 468 s 122 813 
hltergu,em1ental grants and contributions 944.844 s 532,406 1,477.250 
Due from other governmental fonds 309.236 309.236 
Due from other general litnds 657 657 
Other receivables 50.000 50,000 - Ad' ances from or her fonds 2.125 2,125 

Rcstrlctt:U assets· 
Cash 111 c:rn1rnh.:rcml han~s 692.801 25~.161 9~6.962 

Cash in fiscal agent 109,7~~ 2~0.8-1 I 193.628 2.042 546.255 
Propc~· ta\es n:cel\·able. 

net of reserve for doubtful accounrs 

Total assets 1.329.889 692.801 109.967 241.309 193.750 789.266 3,356.982 

LIABILITIES 
Account pa~ able: and al·crnrtl liabilities 

Trade Payables ~55.781 l.~87 107.744 281.367 646.379 
lntcrg.o,enuncntal payabks 1.0211.663 1.029.663 

Due lo other go,emmcntal funds 657 657 
Ouc: to oth1.:r general funds ~,, __ J ~68 122 308,423 309.236 - Advance 10 General Funds 2.125 2. 125 
Deferred revenues. 

Uneamed municipal license tax n:venues 191.978 32,127 224.105 
Earned bur unavailable grant re,enues 

Mature bonds due and payable 95.000 95.000 
Mature 1111erest due and payable 21.472 21.472 

Total liabilities 1.478.079 1,487 107.967 116.940 122 624.042 2,328.637 

F\IN () BALA:'<CES 

Encumbram:es 29..104 29.404 
Debt 5e"'ICC 124.369 124.369 
Capital projects 691.)14 2.000 193.628 116,558 1,003.500 
Long-1en11 recei' ables 48.666 48.666 
l111ergovcm1cntal grants and comributions 
Othct assets and purposes 2.125 2.125 
Unreserved t 179.719) ( 179.719) 

Total litnd balances (note 12) ( 14R.1901 691.JI~ 2.000 124.369 193.628 165.224 1.028,345 

rmal liabilities and fond balances s 1.329.889 s 692.801 $ 109.967 $ 241.309 s 193.750 s 789,266 $ 3.356.982 

-
The accompany111g notes to the basic financial statements are an imegral pan of this statement. 

-
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds to Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2008 

The amounts of governmental act1v1t1es reported in the statement of net assets and the balance sheet 
governmental funds, are different for the following reasons: 

Total fund balances reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds 

Add (Deduct): 

Capital assets used in governmental act1v1t1es are not considered available financial 
resources at fiscal year-end, therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds. This is 
the carrying amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of 
$10.422.063 at June 30. 2008. 

The following liabilities are not due (mature) in the current fiscal year, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds at June 30, 2008: 

Bonds payable 

Notes payable 

Compensated absences 

Net assets - governmental activities. as reported in the statement of net assets 

$ 1,028,345 

12,390,602 

(780,000) 

(3,197,976) 

(852,_182) 

$ 8,683,789 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are in integral part to this statement 

14 



COMMONWEAL TH OF PllERTO RI C O 

Ml1N ICIPALIT Y OF FLORIDA 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances( Deficit) - Governmental Funds 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2008 

l\lajor Funds 
Debt Capital Other Total 

General J oint AEE Legal Service Imp rovemcn ts Governmental Governmental 
Fund Resolution Settlement Fu nd Bond Fund Funds Funds 

RE\'E l iES: 
ra~es : 

Propt:rt' ta,es 4.-104.987 141.579 4.546.566 
Municipal liccns.: ta'<'S 161,680 161.680 
Cunstruction c~cisc ta~cs 60.659 60,659 

Sales and uses taxes 93-1.578 5 11,473 
Total Tax revenues 5,561.904 1-l 1.579 5,703.483 

Intergovernmental grants and c<>ntributions 6Q7.274 64 1,025 200.343 4.025 2.391,491 3.934.158 
Interest on deposits 2.-l-l~ 2,583 4.350 -l.558 7,871 3 21,807 
Charges for se" ices 504.930 504.Q30 
Miscellaneous 32.152 32.152 - Total rt=vcnucs 6.7<18.702 643.608 204.693 150.162 7,871 2.3<11 ,494 10.196.530 

E.\ PEl\ Drn11u:s: 

Current 
Gc:neral government 2.811.-114 5.000 2,816.414 
Urban and economic de,elopment 1,056.58-l 425,990 937.376 2.419.950 
Health & Sanitation 870,6<17 44,499 915.196 
Public safety 638.339 25 638,364 
Public housing and welfare 359.509 S,146 257,588 622,243 
Culture. n.-creation and education -105.QSI 338.581 744,562 
Debt S<:r\ ire 

Principal 193,404 193.404 
Interest on bonds and notes 220.941 220.941 

Capital outlays 20.972 8().1.564 198.3-13 289.935 586.795 I ,900,60Q 

Total e'pt:nditurcs 6. 163.-196 1.235.700 198.3-13 41-1,3-15 2Q4,935 2. 164.864 10,-171.683 - E"ces51 ddiriencv of' revemu:s 
over (under) e~penditures 635.206 (592.092) 6.350 (264,1 83) (287,064) 226.630 (275,153 ) 

OTHE R FINA CING SOl' RC ES (l SESJ: 
Transfer-in from general funds 92.28:.> 316.260 657 409.200 
Transfor-in from other governmental funds 17,068 66,243 83.3 11 
Transli:H>ut 10 general funds (-1.350) H.847) (7.871) ( 17,068) 
Transfer-<111110 other governmental fonds (-109.200) (66.243) (475.443 ) 
Procc:cds from issuncc of note payable 195.000 195.000 

Total otht•r financing sou1ct:s fu~s). m:t (392. 132J 158.526 ( ~.350 ) 3 11.413 1 87 , 1~9 (65.586) 195.000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RE\'ENllES A~D 2-13.07~ (-133.566) 2.000 47.230 (99.935 ) 161 .0-14 180, 153) 

OTHER FINANCI ·c SOl' RC ES O\'ER (l 'NDER) 

fl l D BALANCES AT BEGINN ll\G OF YEAR (393,335) 1.124.880 77.139 293.563 6.251 1,108.498 - PRIOR PE RIOD ADJllSTl\IENTS 2.071 (2.071) 

Fl'ND BALANCES AT BEG INNING OF YE . .\R, 
RESTATED ( 391.26-l) 1.12-1.880 77.139 293.563 4.180 1.108.498 

fl lND B.~LA CES ATE DOF YEAR ( 1 ~8.190 ) 691,31-1 2.000 124.369 193.628 165.224 1.028.345 

- The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part oftl11s statement 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
(Deficits) - Govern mental Funds to Statement of Activities 

June 30, 2008 

The amounts of governmental activities reported in the statement of activities and the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) - governmental funds, are different for 
the following reasons: 

Total net increase in fund balances (deficits) reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances - governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the statement of activities 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation and 
amortization expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense ($1 .900.609) exceeded 
capital outlay expenditures ($616,234) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. 

Repayment of principal of long-term obligations is reported as expenditure in the governmental 
funds; however, the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Certain interest expense reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources. therefore. are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Certain operating expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. This is 
the net change in payab les associated with those types of expenses. 

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable provide current financial resources to governmental funds. 
but issuing such debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Net increase in net assets, as reported in statement of activities $ 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are in integral part to this statement. 
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1,284,375 

193,404 

(15,910) 

(195,000) 

1,043,526 



Mlli\ICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COl\I IONWEAL TH OF PllERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
CO l\IPONENT l lNIT 

Jl lNE 30, 2008 AND 2007 

VILLAS DE FLORIDA I APARTMENTS 
(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA) 
FmHA and HUD Project No. 663-3 1-6706600096 

2008 2007 

CllRREi\T ASS ETS 
Cash $ 40. 106 $ 70.109 
Accounts receivable:: 
Tenants's 4.519 3.214 
HUD 5.46 1 4.379 

Supplies inventory 5.750 4.440 
Prepaid expenses 15.740 15.450 

Total current assets 7 1.576 97.592 

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 

Escrow deposits 20.947 20.386 
T enats security deposits 14.225 13.554 
Reserve for replacements 6 14.364 653.729 

Total n:stricted deposits 649.536 687.669 - PROPERTY AND EQUPMENT 
Buildings improvements 2.706.37 1 2.697.764 
Buildings equipment 207.7 18 122.632 
Furniture 24.247 24.247 
Furnishing 2.044 2.044 
Maintenance 14.590 14.288 

Total property and equipment 2.954.970 2.860.975 
Accumulated depreciation (2.483.649) (2.346.747) 

Tota net property and equipment 471.321 514.228 

Land 302.602 298.702 

Total property and equipment 773.923 812.930 

Total assets s l ,-'95,035 s 1,598,1 91 

LIABILITI ES AND NET ASSETS 

CTRRRE"'iT LIABILITI ES 
Accounts payable - operations $ 8.1 40 $ 8.050 - Accrued interest 4.591 4.883 
Accrued payroll ta'\CS payable 4.1 15 4.691 
Mortgage payable (current portion) 47.421 43.789 
Tenant security deposit 15,440 14.788 

Total current liahilities 79.707 76.20 1 

LOi\G - T ERM Ll.-\BILIT IES - Mortgage payable. 745.656 793.077 

Total long - ternn liabilities 745.656 793.077 

Total liahilities 825.363 869.278 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 669.672 728.913 

Total net asets 669.672 728.913 

Total liahilities and net assets s 1,-'95,035 s 1,598,191 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. 

17 



-

-

-

RE\'ENllES 
Rent 
Financial 
Other 

To1al revenues 

EXPENSES 
Administrative 
U1ilitil!S 
Opnating and maintenance 
Taxes and iinsurance 
Depreciation 
Interest 

Total expenst!S 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

~1llNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF Pll ERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
COMPONENT llNIT 

Jl'NE 30, 2008 AND 2007 

VILLAS DE FLORIDA I APARTME TS 
(PROPERTY OF MU ICIPALITY OF FLORIDA) 
FmHA and HUD Pr~ject No. 663-3 1-6706600096 

$ 

'.'IET ASSETS .\T BEGIN~l:\G OF YEAR 

NET .\ SSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 

2008 

358.044 
13.806 
3.325 

375. 175 

131.258 
6.378 

69.799 
32. 156 

136.902 
57.923 

434.4 16 

(59.241 ) 

728.9 13 

669.672 

The accompanying notes arc integral pan of these financial statements. 
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2007 

360.990 
25.602 

2.145 

388.737 

128.058 
6.202 

65.624 
34.782 

136.758 
60.261 

43 1.685 

(42.948) 

771.86 1 

$ 728.913 
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~1llNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
CO.\I IONWEAL TH OF PllERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
COM PONENT llNIT 

J llNE 30, 2008 AND 2007 

VILLAS DE FLORIDA I APARTMENTS 
(PROPERTY OF MU ICIPALITY OF FLORIDA) 
Fml IA and HUD Project o. 663-3 1-6706600096 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERETING ACTIVITIES 
Rrental receipts. net 
Interest receipts 
Other receipts 

Total receipts 

Dishurstment 
Administrati\e 
Managcmrnt fees 
Utilit ies 
Salaries and wages 
Operating anti maintenance 
Property insurance 
Interest on mongage 

Total disbursment 

Net cash prO\ ided by operating acti,·itics 

CASH FLOWS FRO.\I IN\"ESTING ACTl\"ITIES 
Net deposit 
Reserve for replecement 
Purchese of fixed assets 

Net cash used in linancing activities 

CASH FLOWS FRO.\I FINA:\Cll\G ACTl\"ITIES 
Mortgage principal payments 

et cash used in tinandng activities 

NET DECREASE IN CASH 

CASH AT BEGIN~ING OF YEAR 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

2008 

355.657 
13.806 
3.306 

372.769 

47.308 
42.720 
6.378 

8 1.260 
30.989 
20.987 
70.81 1 

300.453 

72.3 16 

39.365 
(97.895) 

(58.530) 

(43.789) 

(43.789) 

(30.003) 

70.109 

40.1 06 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. 
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2007 

$ 364.491 
25.602 

2.100 

392. 193 

47.582 
38.048 

6.202 
79.505 
25.997 
34. 176 
60.26 1 

29 1.77 1 

100.422 

(64.024) 
(I. 776) 

(65.800) 

(40.432) 

(40.432) 

(5.810) 

75.919 

$ 70.109 



-

-

-

-

-
...... 

MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Municipality of Florida (the Municipality) is a local municipal government constituted in 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth). The Municipality has full 
legislative, fiscal and all other governmental powers and responsibilities expressly assigned 
by Public Act No. 81 of A ugust 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous Municipalities 
Ac/ of the Commonweallh of Puerlo Rico (Act o. 81 ). The Municipality is one of seventy­
eight municipalities legally separated from the Commonwealth 's government. 

The Commonwealth's Constitution provides for the separation of powers of the executive, 
legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities. However, the 
Municipality' s governmental system consists of executive and legislative branches only. A 
Mayor. elected every four years by the citizens. exercises the executive power of the 
Municipality. The Municipal Legislature, whose members are also elected every four years, 
exercises the legislative power of the Municipal ity. The General Justice Court System of the 
Commonwealth, which has jurisdiction over the Municipality, exercises the judiciary power. 

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its 
citizens related to public housing. welfare. public safety, health, sanitation, education, culture, 
recreation, education. urban development, economic development, and many other fiscal, 
general and administrative services. 

a) Financial Reporting Model 

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial pos1t1on and the 
results of operations of the Municipality as a whole, and its various governmental funds 
as of and for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008, in conformity with Accounting 
Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management 's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Govemments (GASB o. 34 ). the required basic financial statement presentation 
applicable to the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (I) govemment­
wide financial statements (G WFS), (2) governmental fund financial statements (GFFS), 
(3) notes to basic financial statements. and (4) required supplementary information (RSI). 

RSI consists of: (I) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a 
budgetary comparison schedule - general fund. RSI is information presented a long with, 
but separate from, the Municipal ity's basic financial statements . 

MD&A is a narrative report that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements 
and provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financia l activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, based on the Municipality' s knowledge of the 
transactions, events and cond itions reflected in the basic financial statements. The 
MD&A also highlights certain key fi scal pol icies that control the Municipality's 
operations . 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2008 

a) Financial Reporting Model (cont.) 

Other supplementary infonnation presented in this report for purposes of additional 
analysis consists of a budgetary comparison schedule - debt service fund. 

b) Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies and 
municipal operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the 
Mayor, and whose financial resources are under the legal custody and control of the 
Municipality's Director of Finance and Budget, as prescribed by Act No. 81 . 

The Municipality' s management has considered all potential component units (whether 
governmental. not-for-profit, or profit-oriented) for which it may be financially 
accountable and other legally separate organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationsh ip with the Municipality may be such that exclusion of 
their basic financial statements from those of the Municipality would cause the 
Municipality's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, 
management has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a 
potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of 
Statement No. 14, the Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB. The basic, but not the 
on ly criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting, entity is if­
elected officials of a primary government, are, financially accountable for the entity. 
Financial accountability exists if the primary government appoints a voting majori ty of 
the entity's governing body, and if either one of the following conditions exist the 
primary government can impose its will on the other entity or the potential exists for the 
other entity to (I) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) impose specific financial 
burdens on the primary government. A second criterion used in evaluating potential 
component units is if the nature and significance of the relationship between the entity 
and a primary government are such that to exclude the entity from the financial reporting 
entity would render the financial statements mislead ing or incomplete. GAAP details two 
methods of presentation: blending the financial data of the component units' balances and 
transactions in a manner similar to the presentation of the Municipality's balances and 
transactions or discrete presentation of the component unit's financial data in columns 
separate from the Municipality's balances and transactions. 

Las Flores Apartments is included in the financial statements as a discrete component 
unit because of the nature of the services they provide and the Municipality 's abi lity to 
impose its will. 

Separate financial statements of the individual component unit can be obtained from the 
respective administrative office. 

Administrative offi ce: Vi I las <le Florida I 
c/o Excellent Management 
B-1 7. Florida. PR 00650 
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c) Financial Reporting Entity (Cont.) 

GASS Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Enlity (GASS No. 14), as amended, 
has set forth criteria to be considered in detem1ining financial accountability for financial 
reporting purposes. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an 
organization·s govern ing body and: (I) the ability of the Municipality to impose its will 
on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the Municipality. 

On July I, 2004, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14 (GASS No. 39). GASB No. 39 states that certain organizations 
for \\hich a primal}· government is not financially accountable nevertheless warrant 
inclusion as part of the financial reporting entity because of the nature and significance of 
their relationship with the primary government, including their ongoing financial support 
of the primary government and its other component units. 

According to GASB No. 39, a legally separate, tax-exempt organization shou ld be 
reported as a discretely presented component unit of a reporting entity if all of the 
following criteria are met: 

The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or 
almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or 
its constituents. 

The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to. or has the ability to 
otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate 
organization. 

The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific 
primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise 
access, are sign ificant to that primary government. 

In addition, GASS No. 39 states that other organizations should be evaluated as potential 
component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary 
government. Such types of entities may be presented as either blended or discretely 
presented component units, depending upon how they meet the criteria for each specified 
in GASS No. 14. 

The Municipality"s management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned 
criteria, there are no legally separate entities or organ izations that should be reported as 
component units of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. 
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d) Government-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The accompanying G WFS are composed of: (I) the statement of net assets and (2) the 
statement of activities. These financial statements report information of all governmental 
activities of the Municipality as a whole. These statements are aimed at presenting a 
broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial position and 
results of operations using methods that are similar to those used by most private 
bus inesses. 

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountability of the Municipality as a s ingle 
economic unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use 
of available or currently expendable financial resources ( referred to as fiscal 
accountability). Operational accountability is the Municipality's responsibility to report 
to the extent to which it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using 
all resources available for that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality' s principal 
operating objective, which is to provide services to its citizens. 

The accompanying statement of net assets provides short-term and long-term information 
about the Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipality's assets 
and liabilities, with the difference between these two items reported as "net assets" 
(equity) and/or accumulated deficit. This statement assists management in assessing the 
level of services that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and its ability to 
meet its obligations as they become due. In addition , this statement reports the extent to 
which the Municipality has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual 
restrictions on resources. 

et assets are classified in the accompanying statement of net assets within the following 
three categories: 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This net asset category consists of 
capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are 
attributed to the acqu isition. construction or improvement of those assets. For the 
purposes of determining the outstanding debt attributed to capital assets, the total 
long-term debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital 
assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt proceeds and any related 
unamortized debt issuance costs. 

• Restr icted net assets - This net asset category consists of net resources restricted by 
external parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other 
governments. etc.). or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional 
provisions or enabling legis lation. Enabling legis lation consists of legislation that 
authorizes the Municipality to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of 
resources (from external resource prov iders). Enabling legislation establishes 
restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be 
used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. 
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d) Government-wide Financial Statements (GWFS)(Cont.) 

The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received 
or earned by the Municipality with an explicit understanding between the 
Municipality and the resource providers that the resources would be used for specific 
purposes. Grants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of 
conditions. Bond indentures al so often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific 
purposes. 

Internally imposed designations of resources, including earmarking, are not reported 
as restricted net assets. These designations consist of management' s plans for the use 
of resources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal 
Legis lature. 

The Municipality has reported the following types of restricted net assets 111 the 
accompanying statement of net assets: 

( 1) Debt service - Represent net resources available to cover future debt service 
payments of bonds and notes payable. 

(2) Capital projects - Represent net resources available to finance the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of major capital assets under contracts and other 
commitments. 

(3 ) Grants and contributions - Represent net resources available from certain 
federal and state grants, which have been set aside to carry out several programs. 

• Unrestricted net liabilities - This category consists of the excess of liabilities over 
related assets (accumulated deficit) that are neither externally nor legally restricted, 
neither invested in capital assets. However, assets reported within unrestricted net 
liabilities often are designated to indicate that management does not consider them to 
be available for general operations. Assets reported within this category often have 
constraints that are imposed by management but can be removed or modified. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Municipality's policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources as they are needed. 

The accompanying statement of act1v1t1es presents the Municipality's results of 
operations by showing, how the Municipality's net assets or liabilities changed during the 
fiscal year ended June 30. 2008, using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement 
presents the cost of each function/program as well as the extent to which each of the 
Municipality"s functions, programs or other services either contributes to or draws from 
the Municipality"s general revenues (such as property taxes, municipal · license taxes, 
construction excise taxes, etc.). 

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a 
major service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs reported in the 
accompanying basic financial statements are: (I) general government, (2) urban and 
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economic development, (3) public safety, (4) health and sanitation, (5) culture, recreation 
and education and (6) public housing and welfare. The governmental operations of the 
Municipality"s departments and operational units are classified within the following 
functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial statements: 

General government: 
Municipal legislature 
Mayor's office 
Department of finance and budget 
Department of human resources 
Department of municipal secretary 
Department of internal audit 
Department of public relations 

Urban and economic development: 
Department of public works 
Department of territorial ordering 
Department of building conservation 

Public safety: 
Department of emergency management - civil defense 
Department of municipal pol ice 

Health and sanitation: 
Department of health 

Culture, recreation and education: 
Department of sports and recreation 

Public housing and welfare: 
Department of public housing 
Department of federal programs 
Department of citizen affairs 

The statement of activit ies demonstrates the degree to wh ich program revenues offset 
direct expenses of a given function/program or segments. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function , segment or operational unit. This 
statement reports revenues in three broad categories: (I) program revenues, (2) general 
revenues and (3) special items. 

Program revenues are generated directly from a program itself or may come from parties 
outside the Municipality"s taxpayers or citizens. In the statement of activities, program 
revenues reduce the costs (expenses) of the function/program to arrive at: ( I) the net cost 
of the function/program that must be financed from the Municipality' s general revenues 
or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality' s general revenues. 
The accompanying statement of activities separately reports the following categories of 
program revenues: 
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• Charges for services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange-like 
transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly 

benefit from the goods. services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly 
affected by the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific services, 
charges for licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among others. 

• Program-specific operating and capital grants and contributions - These 
revenues consist of transactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange 
transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the 
resources for use in a particular program. Operating grants and contributions consist 
of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific 
program or can be used either for operating or capital purposes of a specific program. 
Capital grants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that are restricted 
for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with 
a specific program. Restricted operating and capital grants and contributions are 
program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a program and reduce 
the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of 
estimated uncollectible amounts. 

General revenues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and 
gains that do not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal 
license taxes and construction excise taxes are reported as general revenues. All other 
non-tax revenues (including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not 
restricted for specific programs and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the 
definition of program revenues are classified as general revenues. Resources that are 
dedicated internally by the Municipality are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncollectible 
amounts, which are recorded as reduction of revenues rather than as expenses. 

The general govern111e11t function/ program reported in the accompanying statement of 
activities includes expenses that are, in essence, indirect or costs of other 
functions/programs of the Municipality. Even though some of these costs have been 
charged to certain funds in the GFFS as indirect cost allocations permitted under some 
federal programs. the Municipal ity has reported these indirect costs as direct expenses of 
the general government function. Accordingly, the Municipality generally does not 
allocate general government (indirect) costs. to other functions. 

The effects of all inter-fund governmenta l activities (revenues, expenditures and other 
financing sources/uses among governmental funds) have been removed from the 
accompany ing statements of net assets and activities. 

The Municipality classifies all of its activities as governmental act1v1t1es m the 
accompanying GWFS. These are activities generally financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental reven ues and other non-exchange revenues that can be used to support 
the Municipality's programs or services. These governmental activities are also generally 
reported in the GFFS. 
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The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality 
would be hold ing or managing net assets for specific individuals or other external parties 
in accordance with trust agreements or other custod ia l arrangements. In addition, the 
Municipality has no operations or activities that are financed and operated in a manner 
s imilar to private business enterprises, where the costs of provid ing goods or services to 
the general public (expenses, including depreciation) is financed primarily through user 
charges: or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of 
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy. management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

e) Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a fi scal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing set of accounts used 
to record assets, liabilities and residual equities. deficits or balances, and changes therein, 
which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain 
objectives in accordance with GAAP and/or special regulations, restrictions or 
limitations. 

The accompanying G FFS are composed of: (I) the balance sheet - governmental funds, 
and (2) the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. 

These financial statements report the fina1icial pos1t1on and results operations of the 
Municipality's governmental funds by presenting sources, uses and balances of current 
financial resou rces. Some of these financ ial statements have a budgetary orientation and 
focus primarily on: (I) the Municipality's major governmental funds, as defined below, 
(2) the fiscal accountabil ity and (3) the individual parts of the Municipality's 
government. Fiscal accountabi lity represents the Municipality"s responsibility to justify 
that its actions in the current fiscal year have complied with public decisions concerning 
the raising and spending of public moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year). 

The accompanying GFFS segregate governmental funds according to their intended 
purpose and are used in demonstrating compliance with legal , financial and contractual 
provi sions. The minimum number of governmental funds is maintained consistent with 
legal and self-imposed managerial requirements established by the Municipality. For 
financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its governmental funds within the 
fo ll owing categories: 

• General fund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a 
major governmental fund, as defined below, used to account for all financial 
resources and governmental activities, except for financ ial resources required to be 
accounted for in another fund . It is presumed that the Municipality's governmental 
activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions for which one 
of the fo llowing compell ing reasons has required the use of another fund: (I) legal 
requirements. (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial 
administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund. 
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• Debt service fund - The debt service fund is a major governmental fund, as defined 
below, used by the Municipality to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payment of, principal and interest for: (I) bonds payable for which debt service 
payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and/or (2) 
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being 
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments 
maturing in future years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the financial 
activity accounted for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds 
payable. 

The outstanding balance of general long-term debts for which debt service payments 
do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as notes payable, 
ob ligations under capital leases, accrued compensated absences, accrued legal claims 
and judgments and the federal cost disallowances) are on ly accounted for in the 
accompanying statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts are 
generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service - interest 
expenditures in the general fund. 

• Special revenue funds - The special revenue funds are non-major governmental 
funds, as defined below. used by the Municipality to account for revenues derived 
from grants, contributions or other revenue sources that are either self-restricted by 
the Municipality or legally restricted by outside parties for use in specific purposes 
(except for revenues that are earmarked for expenditures in major capital projects 
which are accounted for in the capital project funds). The uses and limitations of 
each special revenue fund are specified by municipal ordi nances or federal and state 
statutes. However, resources restricted to expenditure for purposes normally 
financed from the general fund are reported in the Municipality's general fund 
provided that all applicable legal requirements are appropriately satisfied. In this 
case, a s pecial revenue fund to account for such kind of transactions will be used only 
if legally mandated. 

• Capital projects funds - Capital projects funds are non-major governmental funds, as 
defined below. used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets. Significant 
capital outlays financed from proceeds of general obligation, public improvement or 
special obl igation bonds accounted for also in the capita l projects funds. 

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital 
acquisitions. construction or improvement activities that would distort financial 
resources trend data if not reported separately from the other Municipality's 
operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalize assets (such as 
furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or improvements) 
have been reported in the governmental fund from which financial resources were 

- used for the payment. 
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Capital projects funds (Cont.) 

The focus of the GFFS is on major governmental funds, which generally represent the 
Municipality's most important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is required to 
segregate governmental funds between major and non-major categories within the GFFS. 
Major individual governmental funds are reported individually as separate columns in the 
GFFS. whi le data from all non-major governmental funds are aggregated into a single 
column, regardless of fund type. 

By definition. the Municipality' s general fund is always considered a major governmental 
fund for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other governmental fund is 
classified as a major governmental fund in the GFFS if its total assets, liabilities, 
revenues or expenditures of that individual governmental fund are at least I 0 percent of 
the corresponding element total (assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all 
governmental funds. For the purposes of applying the aforementioned major fund 
criteria. no eliminations of inter-fund balances have been made. Total revenues for these 
purposes means all revenues, including operating and non-operating revenues (net of 
allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing sources. Total 
expenditures for these purposes mean all expenditures, including operating and non­
operating expenditures, except for other financing uses. 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major governmental funds 
reported in the accompanying GFFS are: ( l) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, 
and (3) the capital improvements bond fund. 

The capital improvement bond fund is a major capita l projects fund used to account for 
the receipts and disbursements of the proceeds arising from the issuance of general 
obligation and permanent improvement serial bonds used in the acquis ition, construction 
or improvement of major capital facilities and assets. 

The legis lative joint resolutions fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for 
financial resources that are received from the state legis lature for use in the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of major capital faci lities and assets. 

The accompanying GFFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by 
GAAP: (I) the reconciliation of the balance sheet - governmental funds to the statement 
of net assets, and (2) the reconcil iation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances - governmental funds to the statement of activities. 

j) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide financial statements - The accompanying GWFS are prepared using 
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Subject 
to the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues ( including interest on 
deposits) are generally recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash fl ows. 

All revenues, expenses. gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and 
exchange-li ke transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. 
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In exchange transactions, each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially 
equal values. An exchange-like transaction is one in which there is an identifiable 
exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal. 

evertheless, the exchange characteristics of the exchange-like transaction are strong 
enough to justify treating it as an exchange for accounting purposes (examples include 
certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenues 
when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received) . 

All revenues, expenses. gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions 
are recorded using the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for No11-excha11ge Transactions (GASB No. 33). GASB No. 33 
established accounting and reporting standards for non-exchange transactions involving 
cash and financial or capital resources (for example, most taxes, grants and private 
donations). In a non-exchange transaction, the Municipality gives (or receives) value 
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in return. This is different from an 
exchange transaction, in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. 
According to GASB No. 33. the Municipality groups its non-exchange transactions into 
the following four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived tax 
revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) government mandated non-exchange 
transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions. 

In the case of derived tax. reven ue transactions, which result from assessments the 
Municipality places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded 
when the underlying exchange has occurred. 

In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and 
municipal license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on 
nongovernmental entities. inc luding individuals, other than assessments on exchange 
transactions, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal 
claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license are generally recorded as revenues 
(net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fi scal year when resources are required 
to be used or the first fi scal year that the use of the resources is permitted. 

Government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as grants and contributions) 
result when a government at one level (such as the federal or state government) provides 
resources to the Municipality and the provider government requires the Municipality to 
use those resources for a specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's 
enabling legislation. In these type of transactions, receivables and revenues are generally 
recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. For 
the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or 
project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Revenue is, therefore, generally 
recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred. 

Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and 
entitlements) result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, 
willingly entered into by two or more parties. 
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Government-wide financial statements (Cont.) 

In these types of transactions, receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the 
same manner as government-mandated non-exchange transactions discussed above. 
Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is 
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable. 

Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in the following 
fiscal year are recorded as deferred (unearned) revenues. 

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the un-matured long-term 
liabilities are recorded only in the accompanying statement of net assets. The 
measurement focus and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying GWFS differ 
significantly from the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the preparation 
of the accompanying GFFS. Therefore, the accompanying GFFS include reconc iliations, 
as detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relat ionshi p 
between the GWFS and the GFFS. 

Governmental fund financial statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using 
the current financial resources measurement focus (flow of current financial resources) 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the accompanying statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds, reports 
c hanges in the amount of financia l resources avai lable in the near future as a result of 
transactions and events of the fiscal year reported. Therefore, revenues are generally 
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to 
be available when they are col lectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current fisca l year. For this purpose, the Municipality 
considers most revenues to be available if coll ected w ithin 90 days after June 30, 2008, 
except for property taxes for which the availability period is 60 days. Revenue sources 
not meeti ng th is avai labil ity c riterion or collected in advance are recorded as deferred 
(unavai lable) revenues at June 30. 2008. 

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property taxes, 
municipal license taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and 
contributions, interest on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue 
sources meet both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying GFFS, 
except fo r amounts recorded as deferred (unavailable) revenues. 

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria 
discussed previously, all revenues, expenses, gai ns, losses, assets and liabilities resulting 
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the 
exchange takes place. Accordingly. certain charges for services and mi scellaneous 
revenues are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not 
measurable until actual ly received. 

All revenues. expenses. gains. losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions 
a re recorded in a simi lar manner to the GWFS. using the previously discussed criteria set 
forth by GASB o. 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to and limited by the 
availability criteria discussed above. 
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Accordingly, property tax and municipal license tax receivables are also generally 
recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has arisen while property tax 
and municipal license tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also 
genera lly recorded in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first 
fisca l year that the use of the resources is permitted. Receivables and revenues from 
federal and state grants and contributions, donations and entitlements are also generally 
recorded when all e ligibility requ irements imposed by the provider have been met 
(generally. as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred). 

Interest on deposits is recorded when earned on ly if collected within 90 days after the 
fi sca l year-end s ince these revenues would be considered both measurable and available. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement 
~( Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
(GASB I o. 6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an 
applicable modification, discussed below) the Municipality genera lly accrues a 
governmental fund liab ility and an expenditure (i nc luding salaries, professional services, 
su ppl ies, utilities, etc .) in the period in which the government incurs the liability, to the 
extent that these liabilities are normal ly expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and 
in full with current available financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the recognition 
criteria for certain expenditures and liabi lities reported under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting prior to GASB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the 
Municipality should distinguish between governmental fund liabilities and general long­
term liabilities. Therefore. the accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds 
generally reflects assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. 
Long-term assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current 
liabilities are generally not accounted for in the accompanying balance sheet -
governmental funds. At the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those un-matured 
that will not req uire the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted 
for in the accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds. 

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GASB o. 6 include: 

• Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when 
payment is due), except for principal and interest due on July I, 2008, which have 
been recorded as governmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2008, wh ich is the date 
when resources are available in the debt service funds (generally, June 30). 

• otes payable. obi igations under capital leases, and compensated absences are 
recorded on ly when they mature (when payment is due). 

• Certain accounts payable, intergovernmental payables and other accrued liabilities 
not due and payable or not normally expected to be liquidated in full and in a timely 
manner with available and expendable financial resources are recorded in the 
accompany ing statement of net assets. Such liabilities are recorded in the 
governmental funds when they mature. 
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• Executor purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a reservation of fund balance 
in the GFFS. 

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources 
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded 
when the related governmenta l fund liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as 
depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying statement of activities, 
but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS. 

g) Stewardship, Compliance and Accou11tability 

Budgetary Control 

According to Act No. 81, the Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual 
budgets each fi scal year for the Municipality' s general fund and debt service fund. Such 
legally adopted budgets are based on expected expend itures by program and estimated 
resources by source. The annual budgets are developed using elements of performance­
based program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates of revenues 
and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the 
time the budgets are prepared . 

The Mayor must submit for each fi scal year commencing on July I, an annual budgetary 
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the 
Commonwealth (the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the 
immediately preceding May 10 and May 15, respectively. The Commissioner 
pre liminarily verifies that the Project complies with al l the applicable laws and 
regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the 
immediately preceding June 13. 

The Munic ipal Legislature has 10 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 
13. to discuss and approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature 
may amend the budgets submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to 
cause a deficit without imposing taxes or identifying other sources of revenue to cover 
such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the 
Project. the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rejection 
within 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or e liminate any line item but may not increase 
or insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may also veto the budgets in thei r 
entirety and return it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor 
rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature w ill have up to 8 days to adopt or reject the 
recommendations or objections of the Mayor. The approved Project is sent again to the 
Mayor. which then would have 3 days to s ign and approve it. 

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred to above, the 
annual budgets for the preceding fisca l year. as approved by the Legislature and the 
Mayor, are automatically renewed for the ensuing fisca l year until the Municipal 
Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets . 

...... 
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Budgetary Control (Cont.) 

This regulation permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its operations 
and other purposes unti I the new budgets are approved. 

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end 
encumbrances, and may include any additional infom1ation requested by the Municipal 
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, 
which are subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality's Department of Finance and Budget has the responsibility to ensure 
that budgetary spending control is maintained . For day-to-day management control 
purposes. expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the 
expenditure-type level of each cost center (activity within a program within a fund). The 
Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds. The 
Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts among programs within and among funds. 

The legal level o f budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally 
exceed appropriation) is at the function/program level (general government, urban and 
economic development, public safety, health and sanitation, culture, recreation and 
education, and public housing and welfare) within a fund . 

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any 
fiscal year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for 
said fi scal year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is 
provided. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The Municipality' s annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of 
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP. 

According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash 
is recei ved. Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary 
excess of expenditures over revenues. 

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase 
orders, contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from 
the appropriation prior to actual expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance 
accounting is a signi ficant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are 
generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available 
appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of 
the fiscal year. Amounts required settling claims and judgments against the Municipality, 
and certain other liabilities. are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise 
processed for payment. Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lapse at fiscal 
year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are continuing 
accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance 
from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending. 
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Budgetary Accounting (Cont.) 

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the budgetary 
comparison schedule - debt service fund provide information about the general and debt 
service funds' original budgets, its amendments, and the actual results of operations of 
such major governmental funds under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2008. Further details of the Municipality' s budgetary control at the 
legal level may be obtained from the Budgetary Liquidation Report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30. 2008, which is prepared by the Municipality's Department of Finance. 
Copies of that report may be obtained by writing to the Municipality's Director of 
Finance. 

Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the developing data on a 
budgetary basis differ s ignificantly from those used to present the governmental fund 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, a reconc iliation of the differences 
between the general and debt service funds' budgetary bases and GAAP actual amounts 
are presented at the bottom of the respective budgetary comparison schedules. 

fl) Unrestricted and Restricted Deposits 

The Municipality's deposits are composed of: (I) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in 
commercial banks. (3) demand depos its in the Government Development Bank for Puerto 
Rico (fiscal agent) and (4) cash equivalents in commercial banks. Cash equivalents 
consist of certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less, which 
are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value. 

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the 
Municipality in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts deposited 
in excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Agents designated by the Commonwealth 's Secretary of 
the Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name hold a ll securities pledged as collateral. 

Cash in fiscal agent in the debt service fund consists of cash related to property tax 
collections which is restricted for the payment of the Municipali ty's debt service, as 
required by law. Cash in fiscal agent in the capital improvements bond fund consists of 
unspent proceeds of bonds, which are restricted for the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of capital assets. 

Restricted cash in commercial banks represents mainly the balance of interest and non­
interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the operations of certain federal and state 
funded programs. 

i) Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2008. 
These accounts receivables are stated net of estimated reserved for doubtful accounts, 
which are determined based upon past col lection experience, historical trends, current 
economic conditions and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
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i) Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts Receivable (Cont.) 

j) 

Activities among governmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fi scal year are referred to as either "due 
to/from other funds,. (i.e. the current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from 
other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans), as applicable. All other 
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

111ventories and Other Current Assets 

Inventories consist of construction materials and inventories of office supplies, food and 
medicines, which are held for consumption. Other current assets consist of prepaid 
expenses. Generally, inventories are capitalized (consumption method) and stated at cost 
using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO) in the GWFS and GFFS. 

k) Deferred Charges 

1) 

Deferred charges in the accompanying statement of net assets consist of bond issuance 
costs, net of accumulated amortization. Deferred charges are amortized over the term of 
the related debt using the straight-line method. In the GFFS, bond issuance costs are 
recorded in the current period as expenditures, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets used in governmental act1v1ties include land and land improvements, 
buildings, structures and building improvements, machinery and equipment (including 
equipment he ld under capita l leases), furniture and fixtures, licensed vehicles, 
construction in progress, and infrastructure. These assets are capitalized and reported in 
the accompanying statement of net assets. Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in 
nature and include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and other 
simi lar assets. 

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an 
individual cost basis of $500 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or 
improvement, and with useful lives extending beyond one year. All assets with 
individual costs under $500 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged 
directly to expense in the government-wide statement of activities. In the governmental 
funds, all capital assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures), whi le all assets 
with individual costs under $500 are recorded as expenditures in the corresponding 
function/program identified with the asset. 

In the statement of net assets, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical 
cost if actual cost was unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical costs based on 
deflated current costs were used to va lue a significant portion of the infrastructure 
constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2003 and certain lands, buildings, structures and 
building improvements. 
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I) Capital Assets (Cont.) 

The method used to deflate the current costs with an approximate price index was used 
only in the case of certain items for which the historical cost documentation was not 
available. Actual historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquired or 
constructed after June 30, 2003 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and 
equipment and licensed vehicles acquired prior or after such date. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net 
assets as projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add value to the asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the government-wide 
statement of activities. However, there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for 
land and construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or 
amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight-line method, except for 
machinery and equipment held under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter 
of its estimated useful life or the lease term. The estimated useful lives of major capital 
asset categories are: 

Land improvements 
Buildings, structures and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Motor vehicles 
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment, 

excluding those held under capital leases 
Equipment held under capital leases 

Years 
20 

30 to 50 
20 to 50 

5 

5 to 20 
3 to 5 

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct expense of 
the function/program specifically identified with the asset. Depreciation and 
amortization of infrastructure is not allocated to various functions/programs but reported 
as direct expenses of the urban and economic development function. 

m) Deferred Revenues 

In the G FFS, deferred revenue arises when one of the fo llowing situations occur: 

• Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
revenue recognition in the current period (reported as "earned but unavailable 
revenue·· in the accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). As previously 
di scussed, avai lable is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2008 and collected 
within 90 days (60 days for property taxes) thereafter to pay obl igations due at June 
30. In subsequent periods, when both criteria (measurable and available) are met, the 
liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 
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m) Deferred Revenues (Cont.) 

• The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as 
"unearned revenue" in the accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). In 
subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for 
deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recogn ized. 

Deferred revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the Municipality 
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as "unearned revenue " in 
the accompanying statement of net assets). No ''earned but unavailable revenue" 1s 
accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assets. 

11) Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are accounted for under the prov1s1ons of Statement No. 16, 
Accounting for Compensated Absences, issued by GASB (GASB No. 16). Compensated 
absences include paid time off made available to employees in connection with vacation, 
s ick leave and compensatory time. The liabi lity for compensated absences recorded in the 
accompanying statement of net assets is limited to leave that: (I) is attributable to 
services a lready rendered on or before June 30, 2008 and (2) is not contingent on a 
specific event that is o utside the control of the Municipality and the employee (such as 
illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent on a 
specific event o uts ide the control of the employer or the employee a re accounted for in 
the period when those serv ices are rendered or those events take place. 

The liabi lity fo r compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly 
and incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as 
employer"s share of social security taxes and Medicare taxes). 

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular 
vacations at a rate of 2.5 days per month (30 days per fisca l year) per employee. 
Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month ( 18 days per 
fiscal year). Employees accumu late compensatory time at a rate of 1.5 times the 
overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess 
of 30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees each fiscal year, if not 
consumed, as required by law. In the case of compensatory time, the excess of 240 hours 
is paid to employees each fisca l year, if not consumed. 

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for al l 
accumu lated unpaid regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick 
leave. if the employee terminates h is or her employment before reaching I 0 years of 
services, such regular s ick leave is not paid to the employee, if not consumed. In addition 
upon termination of employment. an employee does not receive compensation for 
compensatory time. if not consumed previously. 
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n) Compensated Absences (Cont.) 

After I 0 years of services, any regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. 
Accumulated vacation time is full y vested to the employee at any time. 

The liability for compensated absences is reported in the statement of net assets. A 
liability for compensated absences is reported in the GFFS only when matured (when 
payment is due), for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements. 

o) Long-term Debt 

The long-term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets include 
the Municipality's bonds payable; notes payable, obligations under capital leases, accrued 
compensated a bsences and accrued legal claims and judgments. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as liabilities in 
the accompanying statement of net assets. Princ ipal and interest payments on bonds due 
on July 1, 2008 have been recorded as governmental fund liabilities in the GFFS when 
resources were available in the debt service fund (June 30, 2008). In the GFFS, the face 
amount of debt issued (gross debt reported) is reported as other financ ing sources when 
issued . 

In the GWFS debt issuance costs have been capitalized and repo rted as deferred charges, 
which are being amortized under the straight-line method over the life of the debt. In the 
GFFS. such costs are recorded as expenditures as incurred. 

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the prov isions of Opinion No. 
21 , Interest 0 11 Receivables and Payables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board 
(APB No. 21 ). According to APB No. 21 , the Municipality has recorded such notes at 
present value with an imputed interest rate that approximates the rate that would have 
been used, using the same terms and conditions, if it had been negotiated by an 
independent lender. In the accompany ing statement of net assets, such notes payable are 
reported net of the applicable unamortized discount, which is the difference between the 
present value and the face amount of the notes. The discount is amortized over the life of 
the notes us ing the effective interest method. Amortization of the notes discount is 
recorded as part of interest expense in the statement of acti vities. In the GFFS, notes 
d iscount is recognized as other financing uses during the current period. 

b) Leases 

The Municipality classifies its lease agreements either as operating o r capital leases 
obl igations according to Statement o. 13, Accounting for Leases. issued by Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FAS B No. 13). Capital lease agreements are generally 
non-cancelable and involve substance over form, the tran sfer of substantially all benefits 
and risks inherent in the ownership of the leased property, while operating leases do not 
involve such transfer. Accordingly, a capital lease involves the recording of an asset and 
a related lease obligation at the inception of the lease . 
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According to F ASB No. 13, the Municipality classifies a lease agreement as a capital 
lease if at its inception the lease meets one or more of the following four criteria: 

• By the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased property is transferred to the 
Municipality. 

• The lease agreement contains a bargain purchase option. 

• The lease term is substantially equal (75 percent or more) to the estimated useful life 
of the leased property. 

• At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments, with 
certain adjustments. is 90 percent or more of the estimated fair value of the leased 
property. 

Although the Municipality is prevented legally from entering into obligations extending 
beyond one fiscal year, most capital lease agreements entered by the Municipality contain 
fiscal funding clauses or cancellation clauses that make the continuation of the 
agreements subject to future appropriations. Leases that meet at least one of the 
aforementioned four criteria, and have a fiscal funding or a cancellation clause, have been 
accounted for as capital leases in the accompanying 

GWFS. since the likelihood of invoking the provision is considered remote. The 
Municipality's lease agreements do not include contingent rental payments or escalation 
clauses. 

In the GWFS. the obligation under capital leases is recorded at the lesser of the estimated 
fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
excluding any portion representing executor costs and profit thereon to be paid by the 
lesser. A portion of each minimum lease payment is allocated to interest expense and the 
balance is applied to reduce the lease obligation using the effective interest method. 

In the GFFS. the net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the 
capital lease, if applicable, is recorded simultaneously as: ( 1) expenditures and (2) other 
financing sources. Minimum lease payments are recorded as expenditures in the GFFS. 

q) Accou11ting for Pension Costs 

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting/or 
Pensions by State and l ocal Government Employers (GASB No. 27), the Commonwealth 
is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of the Government 
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (formerly Employees' Retirement System of the 
Government of Puerto Rico and Its Instrumentalities) (ERS) and System 2000, a rnulti­
employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution 
plan. respectively. in which the employees of the Municipality participate. 
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q) Accounting for Pension Costs (Cont.) 

r) 

The Municipality is considered a participant. and not a sponsor, of these retirement 
systems since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust funds 
are employees of the Commonwealth and the basic financial statements of such 
retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the Commonwealth. 
Accordingly. no portion of the net pension obligation (NPO) related to ERS has been 
allocated to the Municipality in the accompanying basic financial statements. The basic 
financial statements of the Commonwea lth report the total amount of the net pension 
obligation of ERS, including any amount that may correspond to the Municipality. 

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a 
mu ltiple-employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly. pension costs recognized in the 
accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the statutorily required 
contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions. 

Risk Management 

The Municipality carries commercial ins urance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and 
other losses. Insurance po licies are negotiated by the Commonwealth's Department of 
Treasury (the Department of Treasury) on behal f of all municipalities of Puerto Rico. The 
Department of Treasury pays the insurance premiums on behalf of the Municipality and 
then is reimbursed each fi scal year through month ly equal payments deducted from the 
Municipality's gross property tax collections made by the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center ("CRIM'', by its Spanish acronyms), a governmenta l entity responsible for billing 
and collecting property taxes on behalf of al l municipalities of Puerto Rico. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodi ly injuries caused by 
automobile accidents. This insurance is obtai ned through the Automobile Accidents 
Compensation Admini stration (ACAA), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This 
insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in 
Puerto Rico. The annual premium applicable at June 30, 2008 is $35 per licensed motor 
vehicle. which is paid directly to ACAA. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State 
Insurance Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This 
insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or 
employment-related accidents. or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their 
employment. Workers ' compensation insurance premiums are also paid through monthly 
deductions made by CRIM from the Municipality ' s gross property tax collectio ns. 

The Municipality obtai ns unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and 
drivers · insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs 
admi nistered by the Commonwealth 's Department of Labor and Human Resources 
(DOL). 
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Risk Management (Cont.) 

These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and provide 
supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because of work or 
employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their 
employment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers' 
insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance 
companies for its employees. Different health insurance coverage and premium options 
are negotiated each year by the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality. 
The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated at June 30, 2008. 
Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. In the past 
three years, the Municipality has not settled claims that exceeded insurance coverage. 

s) Reservations of Fund Balances 

Reservations of fund balances represent portions of fund balances in the GFFS that are 
legally segregated for specific future uses or are not appropriated for expenditure. The 
Municipality has recorded the following types of reservations of fund balances in the 
GFFS: 

• Encumbrances - Represent reservations of fund balances for commitments related to 
unperformed (executor) contracts for goods or services (future expenditures under 
purchase orders, contracts and other commitments). These committed amounts 
represent reservat ions of unexpired appropriations and generally will become 
liabilities in future fi scal years as the goods or services are received. 

• Debt service - Represent fund balances available and restricted to cover future debt 
service payments (principal and interest) on bonds payable, which are accounted for 
in the debt service fund. 

• Capital projects - Represent the reservation of financial resources that are restricted 
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital assets under 
contracts and other commitments. These amounts are accounted for in the capital 
projects funds. 

• 

• 

• 

Intergovernmental grants and contributions - Represent financial resources set 
aside for use in federal and state grant programs. 

Long-term receivables - Represent financial resources set aside for long-term 
receivables that are not considered current available financial resources. 

Other assets a11d purposes - Represent financial resources set aside for use in federal 
and state grant programs. 
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t) Inter-Jund Activities 

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund 
activities recorded among governmental funds in the accompanying GFFS: 

• Inter-fund loans - Represent resources (assets) provided by one governmental fund 
to other governmental fund with a requirement and commitment for repayment 
(reimbursement), which are recorded as "due from .. in the lender governmental fund 
and "due to .. in the borrower governmental fund . Inter-fund receivables, which are 
not considered to be currently available financial resources, are reported as 
"advances ". For amounts not expected to be collected, inter-fund 
receivables/payables are reduced to their estimated realizable (settlement) value, and 
the portion of the inter-fund loan that is not expected to be repaid is reported as a 
"transfer-in ·· from the governmental fund that provided the loan. 

• brier-fund transfers (transfers-inl(out)) - Represent flows of assets (permanent 
reallocation of financial resources among governmental funds) without equivalent 
fl ows of assets in return and w ithout a requirement for repayment. Transfers are 
reported as "other financing uses .. in the governmental fund making transfers and as 
"other financing sources " in the governmental fund receiving transfers. 

• Inter-fund reimbursements - Represent repayments (reimbursements) from the 
governmental fund responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the 
governmental fund that initially paid for them. 

In the GFFS. inter-fund activity has not been eliminated. as permitted by GAAP. 

u) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reporting period . Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2) Deposits 

The Municipality maintains its depos its in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico 
and the Government Deve lopment Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB). Proceeds from bonds and 
funds related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB. 

On July 1, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB 
No. 40). Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. 
This statement requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information 
about deposits and investments. 
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The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (I) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) 
custodial credit risk, and (4) foreign exchange exposure. 

• Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer o r other counterparty to an investment 
will not fulfill its obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the 
Commonwealth, the Municipality has adopted, as its custodial and credit risk policy, 
the Statement qf Investment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the Municipality invests only in obligations of the 
Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America. certificates of deposit, 
commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico. which are managed by GDB. According to the 
aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in 
marketable securities or any other types of investments for which credit risk exposure 
may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that 
the credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on 
the Municipality' s deposits are considered low at June 30, 2008. 

• Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments 
will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its 
exposure to declines in fair values by: (I) not including debt investments in its 
investment portfolio at June 30, 2008, (2) lim iting the weighted average maturity of 
its investments to three months or less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in 
interests bearing accounts generating interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 
2008. the Municipality's investments in certificates of depos it are recorded at cost, 
which approximates their fair value. Therefore, the Municipality' s management has 
concluded that at June 30, 2008, the interest rate risk associated with the 
Municipality·s cash and cash equivalents is considered low. 

• Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the Municipality' s deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the 
Statement of !11vestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico the balances depos ited in commercial banks by the Municipality are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a 
maximum of $ 100,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited in 
commercial banks by the Municipality are fully collateralized for the amounts 
deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as 
collateral are he ld, in the Municipality' s name, by the agents of the Commonwealth ' s 
Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized . 
However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been 
incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2008. Therefore, the Municipality' s 
management has concluded that at June 30, 2008, the custodial credit risk associated 
with the Municipality's cash and cash equ ivalents is considered low. 
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• Foreign exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely 
affect the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned 
investment guidelines, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign 
securities or any other types of investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure 
may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign 
exchange risk related to the Municipality' s deposits is considered low at June 30, 
2008. 

3) Municipal License Taxes 

The Municipality is authorized by Act o. 81 to impose and collect municipal license taxes 
to any natural or legal person having trade or business activities within the territory of 
Florida. This is a self-assessed tax generally based on the business volume of taxpayers. 
measured by gross revenues. The Municipality establishes the applicable tax rates. At June 
30, 2008, the municipal license tax rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for 
financial institutions and 0.50 percent for other types of taxpayers. Any taxpayers that have 
been granted with a partial tax exemption under any of the tax incentive acts of the 
Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced tax rates, generally 
between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard rates. 

Each taxpayer must asses the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of 
business through a tax return filed every April 15, based on the actual volume of business 
(revenues) earned in the preceding calendar year. Taxpayers with a sales volume of $1 
million or more must include audited financial statements with their tax return filings. The tax 
can be paid by the taxpayer in two equal installments due on July 15 and January 15, 
subsequent to the filing of the declaration on April 15. The first installment of the tax covers 
the six-month period ended December 31 , subsequent to the filing date of the declaration, 
wh ile the second installment of the tax covers the s ix-month period ended June 30 of the 
subsequent calendar year. If a taxpayer e lects to pay the tax in full on the filing date of the 
declaration (generally April 15), a 5 percent discount is granted automatically on the total tax 
amount due. 

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) 
are recorded as unearned revenues in the GWFS and the GFFS. Total municipal license tax 
receivable amounted to $21,872 at June 30, 2008. Deferred municipal license tax revenues 
recorded in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS amounted to $224, I 05 at June 30, 2008. 

4) Property Taxes 

The Municipality is authorized by Act o. 81 to impose and collect property taxes from any 
natural or legal person that, at January I of each calendar year: (I) is engaged in trade or 
business and is the owner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns 
residential real property with a value in excess of $15,000 (at 1957 estimated market prices). 

C R! M is responsible for the bi 11 in gs and collections of real and personal property taxes on 
behalf of the Munici pality. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM informs to the 
Municipality the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing 
fiscal year. Throughout the fi sca l year, CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on 
the initial estimated collection amounts for the fiscal year. 
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4) Property Taxes(Cont) 
CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a 
comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and the property tax 
amounts actually collected from taxpayers on behalf of the Municipality during the fiscal 
year. This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than December 31 
following the fiscal year end. 

Personal property taxes are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book value of 
personal property assets owned by the taxpayer at January 1 (assessment date) and reporting 
such tax.able value through a personal property tax return fi led on May 15 subsequent to the 
assessment date. The total personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2008 was 7 .03 
percent (of which taxpayers pay 6.83 percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the 
Department of Treasury, as a subsidy). 

Real property taxes are assessed by CRIM. The assessment on real property is made every 
January 1 and is based on estimated current values of the property, deflated to 1957 market 
prices. The total real property tax rate in force at June 30, 2008 was 8.08 percent (of which 
7.88 percent is paid by taxpayers and the rema in ing 0.20 percent is also paid by the 
Department of Treasury. as a subsidy). 

Residential real property occup ied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt 
from property taxes on ly on the first $15 ,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). 
For exempt amounts, the Department of Treasury assumes the payment of the basic tax (4.00 
percent and 6.00 percent for personal and real property, respectively), except for property 
assessed for less than $3,500 (at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the 
Department of Treasury. 

According to Act No. 81, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 6.08 
percent and 8.05 percent. respective ly, there is a levy of an annual spec ia l tax of 1.03 percent 
of the assessed val ue of all real and personal property not exonerated from taxation. This 
specia l tax is levied by the Commonwealth but is collected by CRIM. Collections of this 
special tax are directly remitted by CRIM to the Commonwealth's debt service fund, for the 
pay ment of the general long-term debt of the Commonwea lth. 

In addition, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 6.08 percent and 
8.08 percent, respectively. there is a portion of the tax rate in the amount of 2.00 percent that 
is restricted for the Municipality's debt service requirements on bonds. Such amounts are 
recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund. 

Furthermore, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 6.83 percent and 
8.83 percent, respectively, there is a portion of the tax rates that is recorded in the 
Municipality's general fund, of which a portion is restricted for the payment of: (1) the 
insurance premiums acquired through the Department of Treasury, (2) the monthly 
contributions to CRIM. w hich are statutorily required as the Municipality' s share of CRIM 
operating expenses, ( 4) statutory contributions to the Puerto Rico Health Services 
Administration (PRHSA). as the Municipality's share of the cost of the public health 
insurance coverage provided to qualifying low-income citizens, (5) certain notes payable to 
CRIM and. (6) certain amounts due to certain agencies and component units of the 
Commonwealth. which are recorded within intergovernmental payables in the accompanying 
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4) Property Taxes(Cont) 

5) 

GWFS and GFFS. The 0.20 percent of unrestricted personal and real property taxes paid by 
the Department of Treasury as a subsidy is recorded in the Municipality's general fund. 

The Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth (the Additional Lottery) is an 
operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth ' s basic financial 
statements. which currently operates several betting alternatives to the citizens of Puerto 
Rico. The Additional Lottery is required every fi scal year to distribute a portion of its excess 
of revenues over expenses as fol lows: 

• Thi1ty five percent of its net earnings (defined as the excess of revenues over expenses 
less an amount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement Subsidy 
Program for the Low-Income Qualifying Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities of 
the Commonwealth, of which a maximum of $26 mil lion, on an annual basis, is 
distributed to the Municipal Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating 
expenses and permanent improvements of the municipalities. 

• An additional amount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the 
Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is within the thirty-five percent corresponding 
to the municipal ities of the Commonwealth. When the accumulated municipal 
appropriations from the municipalities' Puerto Rico Health Reform are covered up to 
June 30. 1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA. 

Inter-Fund Transactions 
The compos ition o f inter-fund balances a t June 30. 2008 and for the fiscal year then ended is as follows : 

Due from: 

Capital 

Debt improvements Other Total 

General service bond governmenta l govern menta I 

Due to: fund fund fund Funds funds 

M~jor governmenta l run<ls: 

General fund $ 69 1 122 307.766 $ 308.579 

Other governmental funds 657 657 

Total $ 657 69 1 122 307.766 $ 309.236 

Transfers from: 

Capital 

Debt improvements Other Total 

General service bond Governmental G overnmental 

Transfers to: fund fund fund Funds Funds 

Maj or governmental funds: 

General fund $ 17.068 17.068 

Debt service fund 316.260 3 16.260 

Other governmental funds 92.940 92.940 

Tota l $ .t09.200 17.068 $ 426.268 
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Balance at Reclassification 

beginning of Of completed works 

fiscal year, And permanent 

__ a_.;.s_r_es'-ta_t_ed __ Additions Improvement projects 

Balance at 

end of 

fiscal year 

Governmental activities: 

Cost basis: 

Capital assets. not being depreciated/amortized: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

To1al capiial assd s. nel h.:ing dcpreciah:d/amonized 

Capital assets. being depreciated/amortized: 

Buildings. structures. and improvements 

Infrastructure 

Vehicles. machinery and equipment. and 

fumitun: and fixtures 

To1al capital assets. being depreciated/amonized 

Total cost basis of capital assets 

Accumulated depreciation and amortiLation: 

Buildings. structures. and improvements 

Infrastructure 

Vehicle. machinery and equipment. and 

furniture and fixtures 

Total accumulated depreciation and amonization 

Total cost basis of capital assets 

$ 1.572.78 1 3.900 

2.424.682 

3.997A63 3.900 

15.860.276 8.607 

334.795 1.559.903 

2.235.487 426.095 

1.643.7 12 

20.074.270 1.994.605 

2.4..01Llli I 228 6Q5 
Accumulated 

depreciation/ 

Amortization 

at beginning 

of fiscal year, 

as restated 

$ 8.749.408 

1.861.894 

1.541.274 

12.152.576 

$ 11.9 19.157 

$ 1.576.68 1 

(2.424.682) 

(2.424.682) 1.576.68 1 

2.424.682 18.293.565 

1.894.698 

266.582 2.66 1.582 

1.643.7 12 

2.424.682 24.493.557 

$ 26 QZQ 238 

Accumulated 

Depreciation depreciation/ 

and Amortization 

amortization At end of 

expense fiscal year 

$ 495.187 $ 9.244.595 

94.735 94.735 

64.635 1.926.529 

98.580 1.639.854 

753.137 12.905.713 

$ 1.245.368 $ 13. 164.525 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2008 was charged 
to functions/programs in the accompanying statement of activities as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Economic and urban development 
Health and sanitation 
Component Unit 
Culture, recreation, and education 

Total depreciation and amortization expense 
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7) Long-Term Obligations and Intergovernmental payable 

The general long-term debt activ ity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows: 

Balance at 

beginning or Borrowings Payments Balance at 

fiscal year, or or end or 

as restated additions deductions fiscal year 

Bonds pa}abk 395.000 385.000 780.000 

Public Act 42 3.207.477 (3 16.529) 2.890.948 

Public Ac!. 146 60.151 60.151 

LIMS 28.446 28.446 

Pu.:lo Riw I kalth lnsuranc.: - ASESS 270. 168 (51.737) 218..:131 

Compensated absences 693.082 159.100 852.182 

Claims and judgments 12.196 ( 12.196) 

Total Long- Tern1 Obligations 4.577.923 632.697 (380.462) 4.830. 158 

Intergovernmental: 

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 515.394 71.067 586.461 

Internal Revenue Service 23.332 3.995 27.327 

Puerto Rico Treasury Department 22.276 2.492 24.768 

Asuciacion de Empleados del ELA 12.577 12.577 

ASUME 3.379 3.379 

Employ.:es Retirement System of Puerto Rico 54.172 59.910 114.082 

Employees Retirement System of Puerto Rico 859 859 

U.S. Department of Education (search for unrecorded) 68 204 272 

United States District Court 7.000 (7.000) 

Puerto Rico Water and Sewer Authority 110.228 900 

Puerto Rico Department of Labor 33.257 25.032 111.128 

Puerto Rico General S.:rviccs Administration 10.305 58.289 

Puerto Rico General Services Administration 80.816 (600) 10.305 

Total Intergovernmental Payables 80.216 

846.S.U 190.720 (7.600) 1.029.663 

5.424.466 823.417 (388.062) 5.859.821 

COMPONENT UNIT 

Mortage Loan 836.866 43. 789 793.077 

Historica lly. the general fund has been used to liquidate certain notes payable, compensated 
absences, federal cost disallowances, obligations under capi tal leases and any other long-term 
liabilities other than bonds. 
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Balance 

due within 

one year 

75.000 

54.767 

2.506 

7.541 

255.655 

395.469 

586.461 

27.327 

24.768 

12.577 

3.379 

114.082 

859 

272 

111.128 

58.289 

10.305 

80.2 16 

1.029.663 

1.425. 132 

47.42 1 
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7) Long-Term Obligations and Intergovernmental payable(Cont) 

a) Debt Limitation 

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contracting of debts of the 
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth also provide 
that: 

• Direct obligations of the Municipali ty (evidenced principally by bonds and bond 
anticipation notes) are backed by the full fa ith, credit and taxing power of the 
Municipality; and 

• Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount of the 
principal of, and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all 
bonds and notes issued thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with 
any amount paid by the Munic ipal ity in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds 
or bond anticipation notes guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed I 0 percent of the 
total assessed value of the property located w ithin the Municipality plus the balance 
of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond 
anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt 
service. 

b) Bonds Payable 

The Municipality issues general obligation, special obligation and public improvement 
bonds to finance the acqui sition , construction and improvement of capital assets, as well 
as. to finance certain operati ng needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain 
circumstances. 

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality' s public 
debt wi ll constitute a first claim on the available revenue of the Municipality. Public debt 
is composed of bonds payable. The good faith, credit and taxing power of the 
Municipality are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the princ ipal and interest 
of bonds. 

As described in Note 4, the Municipality levies an annual additional special tax of 2.00 
percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this 
additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at GOB whereby 
sufficient funds are set aside to redeem the bonds payable of the Mun icipality in 
minimum annual or semiannual principal and interest payments. The collections of this 
special tax are recorded in the Municipal ity ' s debt service fund. 
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b) Bonds Payable 

MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
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NOTES TO THE FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total 
principal to be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 2008: 

Outstanding 
Amount 

2003-2004 serial bonds (face amount of $60,000) due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $5,000 to $10,000; plus interests 
due in semiannually installments at variable rates (5.00% at June 30, 
2008) through January, I, 20 I I $ 30,000 

2005-2006 serial bonds (face amount of $65 .000) due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $5,000 to $10,000; plus interests 
due in semiannually installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 
2008) through January I, 2012 

2006-2007 serial bonds (face amount of $295,000) due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $35,000 to $50,000; plus interests 
due in semiannually installments at variable rates (5.00% at June 30, 
2008) through January I, 20 I 0 

50,000 

260,000 

2007-2008 serial bonds (face amount of $195,000) due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $29,000 to $35,000; plus interests 
due in semiannually installments at variable rates (3.93% at June 30, 
2008) through January 1, 2014 

1996-1997 serial bonds (face amount of $400,000) due in annual 
princi pal installments ranging from $I 0,000 to $40,000; plus interests 
due in semiannually installments at variable rates (6.48% at June 30, 
2008) through July I, 2016 

Total bonds payable 

195,000 

245 ,000 

$ 780,000 

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GOB and are based 
on the fluctuation of GOB"s weighted average rate for its commerc ial pape r program. 
Under this program. GOB issues commercial paper: ( I) in the taxable and tax-exempt 
markets of the United States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to 
corporations having tax exemptions under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives 
Acts and, which qualify for benefits provided by the former Section 936 of the U.S. 
Internal Revenue Code. 
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b) Bonds Payable 

Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

June 30, Princi~al Interest Total 
2009 $ 95,000 33,264.52 $ 128,264.52 
2010 I 05,000 44,656.50 149,656.50 
2011 110,000 37, 175.00 147, 175.00 
2012 110,000 29,375 .00 139,375.00 
2013 115,000 20,937.50 135,937.50 

2014-2018 245.000 24,812.50 269,812.50 

Totals $ 780,000 190,221.02 $ 970,221 .02 

At June 30, 2008. accrued interest payable on bonds amounted to $21 ,4 72. 

c) Notes Payable to CRIM 

The Municipality had the following notes payables to CRIM at June 30, 2008: 

• Public Act No. 146 - On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GOB 
pursuant to the provisions of Public Act No. 146 of October 11 , 200 I, as amended 
(Act No. 146). The purpose of this financing agreement was to extinguish in 
advance certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance Corporation (PFC), a 
subsidiary of GOB, which were originally issued to pay certain property tax 
receivables owned by the municipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996, which were 
acquired by PFC with recourse. 

The original face amount of the note allocated by CRIM to the Municipality was for 
a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent during its first 
five years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan shall bear variable 
interest at a rate of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted 
every five years. During the first five years of the note, commenced on July I, 
2003, the Municipality shall pay only interest. At the end of the first five years of 
the note. the repayment terms and conditions of the note shall be renegotiated to 
allow the Municipality to pay the outstanding balance of the note in equal 
installments of principal plus interest, through maturity. Interest payments on this 
financing agreement are accounted for in the general fund . 
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c) Notes Payable to CRIM(Co11t) 

• 

The outstand ing principal of the note payable to CRIM amounted to $2,890,948, at 
June 30, 2008. The principal and interest maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

J une 30, Principal Interest Total 

2009 2,506,28 3,741.38 6,247.66 
2010 2,506,28 3,585.50 6,091. 78 
2011 2,506.28 3,429.60 5,935.88 
2012 2,506.28 3,273.70 5,779 .98 
2013 2,506.28 3,117.82 5,624.10 

2014-2018 12,531.43 13,250.72 25,782.15 
2019-2023 12,531.43 9,353.46 21,884.89 
2024-2028 12,531.43 5,456.18 17,987.61 
2029-2032 10,025.14 1,558.92 11,584.06 

Totals $ 60, 150.83 46,767.28 $ 106,918.1 1 

Public Act No. 42 - The Commonwealth 's Pubic Act No. 42 of January 26, 2000 
(Act No. 42) was enacted to authorize CRIM to enter into a financing agreement of 
up to $200 million, for a term not exceed ing 30 years. The financing agreement 
authorized CRIM to finance a debt that the municipalities of Puerto Rico had w ith 
such entity, which arose from the difference between the yearly final settlements of 
property tax advances made by CRIM to the municipal ities and the actual property 
tax collections received by CRIM from taxpayers through fiscal year 2000. The 
amounts that the municipalities w ill collect from the additional property taxes 
resu lting from the increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth are assigned 
through Act No. 42 to repay such note. The increase in this subsidy was the result 
of Pub I ic Act No. 23 8 of August 15, 1999. 

In add ition, on Decembe r 16, 2002 the Municipali ty entered into a repayment 
agreement w ith GOB and CRIM to pay off the remai ning of excess of property tax 
advances from fiscal years 2000, 2001 and other previous fiscal years. CRIM 
retains the principal and interest from the property tax advances of the Municipality. 
The amounts retained by CRIM are remitted to GOB on July I of each fiscal year 
through July I, 2032. The repayment agreement bears interest at variab le rates 
determined by GOB (6.30 percent at June 30, 2008) but not exceeding 8.00 percent. 
Principal and interest payments on this financing agreement are accounted for in the 
general fund. 
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c) Notes Payable to CRIM(Cont) 

The principal and interest maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2009 54.766.57 178,043.17 
2010 58,207.66 174,602.06 
2011 61,864.98 170,944.76 
2012 65,752.09 167,057.65 
20 13 69,883.43 162,926.30 

2014-2018 421 ,065.45 742,983.18 
2019-2023 57 1,048.50 593,000.17 
2024-2028 774,455.32 389,593.36 
2029-2032 813,904.39 117,334.53 

Totals $ 2,890.948.39 2,696.485.18 $ 

d) Notes Payable to Puerto Rico Health Services Administration 

Total 

232,809.74 
232,809.73 
232,809.74 
232,809.74 
232,809.73 

I , 164,048.63 
I, 164,048.67 
I , 164,048.68 

931 ,238.92 
5,587,433.57 

Notes payable to the Puerto Rico Health Services Administration is related to the 
contribution due by the Municipality to the public health insurance of the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico. The balance of $000,000 covers the period from August I, 1996 to June 
30, 1997. This note will be paid from future increases in the Municipality's share of 
contributions to be received from the Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico (the Additional Lottery), an operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico·s basic financial statements. The Additional Lottery 
is required every fiscal year to distribute to the municipalities a portion of its excess of 
revenues over expenses as follows: 

• Thirty five percent of its net earnings (defined as the excess of revenues over 
expenses less an amount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement 
Subsidy Program for the Low-Income Qualifying Elderly) is earmarked to the 
municipalities of the Commonwealth, of which a maximum of $26 million, on an 
annual basis, is distributed to the Municipal Equalization Fund held by CRIM to 
cover operating expenses and permanent improvements of the municipalities. 

• An additional amount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to 
the Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is within the thirty-five percent 
corresponding to the municipalities of the Commonwealth. When the accumulated 
municipal appropriations from the municipalities ' Puerto Rico Health Reform are 
covered up to June 30. 1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA. 
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e) Lims 

j) 

Share of financ ing agreement for system of information of the real property in Puerto 
Rico. The outstand ing debts are showed as follows: 

Summary - Lims Principal Intereses Total 

2009 7,540.82 1,581.99 9.122.81 
2010 7,996.18 1,126.64 9,122.82 
2011 8,479.02 643.79 9,122.81 
2012 4,429.62 131.78 4,561.40 
Total 28.445.64 3.484.20 31.929.84 

Mortgage Loan - Villas de Florida I mortgage loan payable to the federal 
government bears interest at 7 .0% through 2019 and is secured by the Federal 
Housing Administration and by a first mortgage on rental property. Principal and 
interest in monthly installments of $8,40 I are payable from the proceeds of the 
rent collected from the tenants. The Federal government provides housing 
assistance payments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly rent. 
This housing project is adm inistered by a private entity. 

Aggregate annual maturities of the mortgage payable over each of the next five 
years and thereafter as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year E nding 

June 30, 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Thereafter 
Total 

Amount 
$47,421 

51,361 
55,625 
60,242 
65,242 

513.186 
$793,077 

8) Employees' Retirement Systems 

a) Plan Description 

The Municipality·s employees participate in the Employees' Retirement System of the 
Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi­
employer (as related to the Municipality·s reporting entity) defined pension plan 
established by the Commonwealth. Substantially all full-time employees of the 
Commonwealth and substantially all municipalities are covered by ERS under the terms 
of Publ ic Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951 , as amended (Act No. 447). All regu lar and 
temporary employees of the Munic ipality become plan members of ERS at the date of 
employment. while it is optional for officers appointed. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

8. Employees' Retirement Systems(Cont) 

ERS members, other than those joining it after March 31, 1990, are eligible for the 
benefits described below: 

• Retirement Annuity 

• 

• 

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age: 

Policemen and firemen: 
50 with 25 years of c redited service 
58 with I 0 years of cred ited service 

Other employees: 
55 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with I 0 years of credited service 

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the 
application of the stipulated benefit ratios to the member's average com pensation. 
Average compensation is computed based on the highest 36 months of compensation 
recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a member is eligible, is limited to a 
minimum of $300 per month and a maximum of 75 percent of the average 
compensation. 

Merit Annuity 

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of 30 years or more of 
credited service. The annuity for wh ich the plan member is eligible is limited to a 
minimum of 65 percent and a maximum of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

Deferred Retirement Annuity 

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after 
having accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualities for 
retirement benefits provided his/her contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58 
years of age. 

• Coordinated Plan 

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to 
receive social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the fo llowing: 

(a) $165 per month, if retired with 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 

(b) $110 per month, if retired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of credited 
service. 

(c) All other between $82 and $100 per month. 

(d) Disabil ity annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in 
some cases can be reduced over $165 per month. 
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8. Employees' Retirement Systems(Cont) 

• 

• 

Non-Coordinated Plan 

On the non-coordinated plan the part1c1pating employee and does not have any 
change on the pension benefits upon receivi ng social security benefits. 

Reversionary Annuity 

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement 
annuity g iving one or more benefit payments to his/her dependents. The life annuity 
payments would start after the death of the retiree for an amount not less than $240 
per year or greater than the annuity payments being received by the retiree. 

• Occupational Disability Annuity 

• 

• 

A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her 
occupation is totally and permanently disabled, is el igible for a disability annuity of 
50 percent of the compensation received at the time of the disability. 

Non-occupational Disability Annuity 

A participating employee, totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to 
his/her occupation and with no less than I 0 years of credited service, is e ligible for an 
annuity of 1.50 percent of the average compensation of the first 20 years of cred ited 
services, increased by 2 percent for every additional year of credited service in excess 
of 20 years. 

Death Benefits 

Occupational: 

(a) Surviving spouse - annuity equal to 50 percent of the participating employee's 
sa lary at the date of the death. 

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum 
benefit per family of$100. 

Non-occupational: 

Beneficiary - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death 
plus an amount equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death. 

Post-retirement: 
Beneficiary with surviving spouse age 60 or over and a child, 18 or under, up to 30 
percent (60 percent, if not covered under Title II of the Social Security Act) 
(increased to 50 percent effective January 1, 2005) of retiree ' s pension or otherwise 
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8. Employees' Retirement Systems(Cont) 

the excess. if any, of the accumu lated contributions at the time of retirement over the 
total annu ity benefits received before death, limited to a minimum of $750. 

• Refunds 

A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality 
without the right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions 
to ERS plus any interest earned thereon. 

• Cost of Living Adjustment/or Pension Benefits 

Public Act o. I 0 of May 21, 1992 (Act No. I 0) provided for increases of 3 percent 
every three or more years of retirement. Act o. I 0 requires further legislation to 
grant this increase every three years subject to the presentation of actuarial studies 
regard ing its costs and the source of financing. To protect the financial health of 
ERS, the increase granted during 200 I and the one granted on January I, 2005 are 
being financed by the Municipality and the other participating employers. 

To avoid any economic impact on ERS, the employers are responsible for 
contributing to ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and 
employee contributions with respect to the participants covered unti l the participants 
reach the normal retirement age. 

• Amendment to Act No. 447 effective January 1, 2000 to create a Defined 
Contribution Plan 

On September 24, 1999. Public Act o. 305, an amendment to Act No. 447, was 
enacted to estab lish a defined contri bution plan, known as System 2000, to cover 
employees joining ERS on or after January I, 2000. 

Employees that participated in the original plan as of December 31, 1999, had the 
opportunity to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System 
2000. Employees that joined the Munic ipality on or after January I, 2000, were only 
al lowed to become members of System 2000. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance 
plan. Under this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the 
System, together w ith those of the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. 
Neither the Commonwealth nor the Municipality guarantee benefits at retirement age. 
The annuity is based on a formula which assumes that each fiscal year the 
employee' s contribution (with a minimum of 8.28 percent of the employee's salary 
up to a maximum of I 0 percent) is invested as instructed by the employee in an 
account which either: (I) earns a fi xed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity 
Treasury Notes, (2) earns a rate equal to 75 percent of the return of the ERS' 
investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earns a combination of both 
alternatives. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of 
defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are 
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8. Employees' Retirement Systems(Cont) 

• 

not granted under System 2000, rather are provided to those part1c1pants that 
voluntarily elect to participate in a private insurance long-term disability program. 
The employers' contributions (9.28 percent of the employee ·s salary) with respect to 
employees under System 2000 will continue and will be used to fund the cost-sharing 
multi-employer defined benefit plan. 

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees 
who joined the current plan on or after January I, 2000. 

Historically, the Commonwealth has reported ERS and System 2000 in its basic 
financial statements as pens ion trust funds. Accordingly, the Commonwealth is 
currently assuming any actuarial defic iency that may exist or arise related to the 
Municipality's participating employees because ERS does not allocate to the 
Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to participating municipal 
employees. The Municipality is only required by law to make statutory contributions 
at the rates detailed below. 

Recent Amendments to Act No. 447 

In June and July 2003, the Governor of the Commonwealth signed three Public Acts 
that provided the following certain benefits to retirees: 

(a) Increase in minimum mon thly pens ion payments to $300, effective January I, 
2005. 

(b) Triennial 3 percent increase in all pensions, effective January I, 2005. 

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the benefit received by 
the deceased pens ioner. effective January I, 2005. 

All the benefits granted will be funded through budgetary assignments m the 
Municipality's general fund with respect to its retired employees. 

The Board of Trustees of ERS approved, effective November 17, 2003, an increase in 
the amount granted on personal loans to participating employees from $3,000 to 
$5,000. 

b) Funding Policy 

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not 
determined. These contributions are as follows: 

actuarially 

Municipality and other employers 9.28 percent of applicable payroll 
Employees: 
Coordination plan: 

Supplementation plan: 

5.78 percent of g ross salary up to $6,600 per year, 
plus 8.28 percent gross salary in excess of $6,600. 
8.28 percent of gross salary. This is the only choice· 
available to pol icemen, firemen and majors 
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9. Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs 

State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to carry out a certain closure 
work on the Municipality's landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain 
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site in the following years. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, "Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste 
Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care Costs" (GASB No. 18), the Municipality has not 
performed a study of the closing and post-closing costs in order to recognize a provision for 
those future estimated costs. Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in United States of 
America require that provision for liability of closure and post closure care costs be recorded 
to comply with applicable state and federal regulations. 

10. Commitments and Contingencies 

The Municipality is defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to 
the performance of routine governmental operations. Under Act No. I 04 of June 25 , I 955, 
as amended. persons are authorized to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set 
forth in said Act to a maximum amount of $75,000 or $I 50,000 if it involves actions for 
damages to more than one person or where a single injured party is entitled to several causes 
of action. Under certain circumstances, as provided in Act No. 9 of November 26, I 975, as 
amended. the Municipality may provide its officers and employees with legal representation, 
as well as assume the payment of any judgment that may be entered against them. There is 
no I imitation on the payment of such judgment. 

With respects to pending or threatened litigation, the Municipality has not reported liabilities 
for awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments as of June 30, 2008. Management believes 
that any unfavorable outcome in relation to pending or threatened litigation would not be 
s ignificant, if any. 

The Municipality has reported, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $29,404 in the 
general fund at June 30, 2008. The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrances, 
which will continue to be liquidated under the current year' s budget during a lapse period 
that extends into the subsequent fiscal year. 
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RESOURCES (inflows): 

Property Taxes 
Volume of Business Taxes 
Government of P.R. Contributions 
Sales and use tax 
Charges for services 
Interest and Penalties 
Other 

Amounts available for appropriations 

MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS 

ORIGI NAL FI NAL 

$ 4.695,179 $ 4,695, 179 
112,000 112,000 
672, 106 672, 106 

76,200 76,200 
506,000 506,000 
2 1,000 21.000 
16.000 16,000 

6,098,485 6,098,485 

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (out flows): 

General Administration 
Mayor Office 498,340 559,503 
Municipal ity Assembly 92.277 92.277 
Finance 1,44 1.823 1,462,503 
Personne l 332,047 493,0 15 
Municipal Secretary 151.662 155.245 
Citizen Assistance 196,876 195,376 
Internal Audi tor 49.885 48,385 

Health 585.374 548.080 
Publ ic Safety and emergency management 520,722 509.622 
Sport and recreation 295.798 301,298 
Recycling and Public Works 1,933.681 1,733,181 

Total charges to appropriations 6,098.485 6.098.485 

ACTUAL 

AMOUNTS 

$ 4,330,247 
195,588 
133,940 
131,599 
524,273 
25,832 
32,313 

5,373,791 

551,327 
85,089 

1,425,266 
597,305 
160,987 
198,890 
48,0 19 

586,491 
541,732 
304,785 

1,761 ,774 

6.261,665 

Excess (deficiency) resources over charges $ - $ 0 $ (887.874) 

VARIANCE WITH 
FINAL BUDGET 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (364,932) 
83,588 

(538, 166) 
55,399 
18,273 
4,832 

16,313 

(724,694) 

8,175 
7, 188 

37,237 
( 104,290) 

(5,742) 
(3,514) 

366 
(38,41 1) 
(32, I I 0) 

(3,487) 
(28,592) 

(163,180) 

$ (887,874) 

The accompanying notes are integral part of this financial statement. See auditor's report. 
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RECONCILIATION OF ACTUAL AMOUNTS- BUDGETARY BASIS AND GASB BASIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

SOURCES/ INFLOW OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES: 

Actual amounts budgetary basis from the 
budgetary comparison schedule 

Timing differences in revenue recognition in 
bugetary basis vs. Actural in Statement of 
Revenues: 

Municipal Subsidy 
Property Taxes 

Reclass from Sales Taxes special fund 
revenues to 

Adjustment from other resources 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of 
Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances-Governmental Funds 

USES/ OUTFLOWS OF Fl ANCIAL RESOURCES: 

Actual amounts budgetary basis from the budgetary 

comparison schedule 

Adjustment in account payable AEE 

Other obligations considered expenditures for financial 
reporting puposes but are not expenditures for bugetary basis 

Encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for 
budgetary basis 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues. 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Govermental Funds 
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$ 5,373,791 

532, 106 
74,739 

802,980 

15,086 

$ 6,798,702 

$ 6,261,665 

(68,765) 

(29,404) 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

NOTE 1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Control 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of 
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP, and represents 
departmental appropriations recommended by the Mayor and approved by 
the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal -year. 
Amendments to the budget require the approval of the Municipal 
Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as 
Mayor's Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal 
Legislature. 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of 
the general fund. 

For budgetary purposes. encumbrance accounting is used. The 
encumbrances (i .e.. purchase orders, contracts) are considered 
expenditures when incurred. For GAAP reporting purposes, 
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund 
balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the 
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal 
year will lapse at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly 
capital project appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the 
Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the 
prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO - Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 

Federal Pass-through 

- CFDA Grantor's Expenditures 
Number Number 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 *RQ-045-VO $ 257,588 

State Block Grant Program 
14.219 *All program 949,911 

year 

Total U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 1,207,499 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 NIA 44,499 

Total U.S Department of Agriculture 44,499 

U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 NIA 338,581 

Total U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services 338,581 

- Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 1,590,579 
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1. General 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal 
grant activity of the Municipality of Florida of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and is 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The Municipality of Florida reporting entity 
is defined in Note I to the Municipality 's general purpose financial statements. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-1 33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations, 
therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in 
our used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

2. Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements 

Expenditures of the federal awards as reported in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental funds, are included within 
the on-major Governmental Funds. The reconciliation between the expenditures in the 
basic financia l statements and expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards is as follows: 

Expenditures in the Basis Financ ial Statements 

Non-major governmental funds 
Less: Non-federal expenditures 

Total expenditures in the 
Schedule of Federal Awards 
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$ 2, I 64,864 
(574.285) 

$ 1.590.579 
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Pho~: 787-78+2255 
Fax: 787-78+2250 

Email: jnnd<!cio:q·hotmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Assembly 
Municipality of Florida 
Florida, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipality of Florida as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2008. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to fi nancial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of Florida financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the detennination of financial statements amounts. However, providing and opinion on compliance w ith 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such as an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs Section II. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and perfonn ing our audit, we considered the Municipality of Florida internal control over . 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial 
reporting. 

However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its 
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to 
our attention relating to sign ificant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over 
financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Municipality of Florida ability to 
record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the 
financial statements. Reportable conditions in federal award are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs Section II and also we have reported to the management of Municipality 
of Florida those reportable condition that affect the internal control of the Municipality operations in a 
separate letter. 

A material weakness is a condition in wh ich the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a· 
timely period by employees in the nonnal course of perfonn ing their assigned functions. Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in 
the internal control that might be re portable conditions and, accordingly, wou ld not necessarily disclose 

Mailing Address Box 757, Dorado, PR 00646 
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all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weakness. However, we believe that none 
of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. 

This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, the Municipality's management, the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (Cognizant Agency), and federal awarding agencies 
and pass-through entities and not is intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

~.,f11£11f 
Lie. #2214 A\PA ... 

December 15, 2008 
Toa Baja, Puerto Rico 

Stamp No. 2384902 of Puerto Rico Society of CertifiedPublic Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 
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-JUAN A. RIVERA, CPA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

Phon~:737-78+-2255 

Fax: 737-73+.2250 
EnWI: jnndcci,..,~/·hot111a il.c0m 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLETO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN A ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Assembly 
Municipality of Florida 
Florida, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those Standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Municipality of 
Florida compliance w ith those requirements and performing such others procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not include a legal detennination of the Municipality of Florida compliance with those 
requirements. 

As described in Section II items in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the 
Municipality of Florida did not comply with requirements regarding administrative requirements that are 
applicable to its Section 8 Program. Compliance with such requirements are necessary for the 
Municipality of Florida to comply with the federal regulations. 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the Municipality of 
Florida complied, in a ll material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Municipality of Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective· 
interna l control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and perfonni ng our audit, we considered the Municipality of 
Florida internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federa l program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133. 

Our noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we 
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention 
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, 
in our j udgment, could adversely affect the Municipality of Florida ability to administer a major federal 
program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. 

Mailing Address Box 757, Dorado, PR 00646 
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Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs in 
Section II. 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major 
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of perfonning their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over 
compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable 
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also 
considered to be material weaknesses. 

However, we believe that none of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. This 
report is intended for the information of the audit committee, the Municipality's management, the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (Cognizant Agency), and federal awarding agencies 
and pass-through entities. However, this repo1t is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

~iv~ 
Lie. #2214 9\"CM 

December 15, 2008 
Toa Baja, Puerto Rico 

Stamp No # 2384903 of Puerto Rico Society ofCertifiedPub!ic Ac 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. countants 
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MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

Section I - Summarv of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued:qualified opinion 

Internal Control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness (es) identified? 

Reportable condition (s) identified that are 
not considered to be material weakness 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weakness (es) identified? 

Reportable condition (s) identified that are 
Not considered to be material weakness? 

reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
programs: qualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
To be reported in accordance with section 
510 (a) of Circular A-133? 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between type A and type B programs: $500,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee 
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__ yes 

_x_ yes 
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__x_ yes 

__x_ yes 

_K_ yes 

_x_no 

none 
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Section II 

Condition 08-01 

MUNICIPALITY OF FWRIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

The Municipality did not comply with the requirement of preparing and filing its federal financial reports 
on a timely basis. During our examination of the Federal Financial Reports, we noted that the 
Municipality did not send on time the quarterly report for the following period ended. 

Quarterly Due/Date Date Submitted 

January - March 4/30/08 05/02/2008 

Criteria 

The Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR 85.40 (b) (1) which requires federal fund recipients to 

periodicalJy monitor the performance of grant-supported activities to ensure that time schedules are being 
met, projected work units by time periods are being accomplished, and other performance goals are being 
achieved by the preparation of federal financial reports. To achieve these goals, program management 

should prepare accurate and timely federal financial reports. The Municipality should submit quarterly or 
semi-annual reports 30 days after the reporting period. The office of Municipal Affairs granted ten days to 
this reporting requirement. 

Cause 

The above situation occurred because the Municipality did not ensure to verify and understand its 
reporting requirements for this program. 

Effect 

The continued failure to file the required reports may result in sanctions by the Federal grantor, such as 

grant payment withholdings. 

Recommendation 

The Municipality should verify and become familiar with all administrative requirements applicable to 
each federal financial assistance program, especially when new grants are received. This can be achieved 
by obtaining the information applicable to the program from the pass-thru grantor, federal grantor, or the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance ("CFDA"), which is available from federal government. 

71 



-

-

-

-

Condition 08-02 

MUNICIPALITY OF FLORIDA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

The Municipality does not have effective internal controls over compliance with the requirements of 

Davis Bacon Act. 

Criteria 

The Municipality is not in compliance with 29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to 

Contracts governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction". Section 5:5 and 5:6, which requires 

that for all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 financed by federal assistance funds includes a 

clause where the contractor or subcontractor comply with the requirements of the Davis Bacon Act. This 

includes a requirements for the contractor or subcontractor to submit to the Municipality weekly, for each 

week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of the payroll and a statement of compliance 

(certified payrolls). 

Cause 

The program's management filed to monitor that the required clause is included in the construction 

contracts. 

Effect 

The continued failure to implement internal controls and ensure compliance with the above requirements 

may expose the Municipality to cost disallowances. 

Recommendation 

The Municipality must include the required clauses in all construction contracts financed by federally 

assistance funds. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Condition 08 -03 Accounting System 

The accounting records maintained by the Federal Programs Office are not reconciled with the accounting 
records maintained by the Municipality' s central accounting department records. The Municipality has 

not established procedures for the reconciliation of the transactions recorded in the Program' s accounting 
records with those recorded in the Municipality's central accounting department records. As a result, this 

condition may lead to inaccurate reporting of programs supported activities. 

Criteria: 

OMB Circular A- 102, 20 (b) (2) requires recipient of federal funds to have a financial management 
system that provides for the maintenance of accurate, current and complete records of the financial result 
of federally assisted activities in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the Federal 
program. 

Cause and Effect: 

The lack of a reconciliation process in the accounting system may increase the risk of fraudulent financial 

reporting and may increase the risks of misappropriation of assets and undetected errors and irregularities, 
including those related to federal financially assisted programs. This situation may lead to incorrect or 

fraudulent budgetary reporting. 

Recommendation: 

The Municipality must prepare federal financial reports asked on the Programs underlying accounting 
records. 

During the current examination, follow-up was given to the findings informed to the Municipality in prior 
years. It was noted that corrective action has been taken, except for certain conditions that still exist and 
require further action. These are included in the accompanying Schedule of Prior Year Audits Findings 
and Questioned Costs. 
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Program 

SBGP-CFDA 
No.14.228 

SBGP-CFDA 
No.14.228 

SBGP-CFDA 
No.14.228 

Section 8 - CFDA 
No. 14.871 

Findings/Noncompliance Status 

Condition 07-01 Cash Management 
The program did not comply with the 
procedures for minimizing time between 
transfers of funds received for Agency. The 
program does not have adequate control 
procedures for the cash management of the 
federal funds . Corrected 

Condition 07-02 Quarterly Report 
The Municipality did not prepare and filed its 
Federal Financial Reports on timely basis. The 
Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR 
85.40 (B) (1) which requires federal fund 
rec1p1ents to periodically monitor the 
performance of grant-supported activities to 
ensure that time schedules are being met, 
projected work units by time periods are being 
accomplished, and other performance goals are 
being achieved by the preparation of federal 
financial reports. To achieve these goals, 
program management should prepare accurate 
and timely federal financial reports. The 
Municipality should submit quarterly or semi­
annual reports 30 days after the reporting 
period. The office of Municipal Affairs 
granted ten days to this reporting. 

Condition 07-03 Davis Bacon Act 

The Municipality does not have effective 
internal controls over compliance with the 
requirements of Davis Bacon Act. 

Condition 07-04 
The Section 8 Program failed in the timely 
submission of federal financial reports of the 
Program. We requested a sample of reports of 
the program and they did not comply with the 

Still Prevail 

Still Prevail 

reporting date's submission requirements. Corrected 
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